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The Honmorable Mayor and City Council
City of Boston, Massachusetts:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-lype activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Boston (the City), Massachusetts, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of
the City's management. Our responsibility is 1o express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of certain entities, which represent
3% and 3% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the agpregate remaining fund information
and 2% and 27% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the discretely presented component
units. Those financial statements were aodited by other auditors whose reporis have been
furnished 1o us, and our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates o the ageregate
remaining fund information and the discretely presented component units and their effects on the
governmental and fiduciary activities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally zccepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial awdits contained in Government
Awdditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal
contral over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the
City's internal contrel over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. The
financial statements of the permanent funds and private-purpose trust funds were not andited in
accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes azsessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a
reasonable basiz for our opinions.

In cur opinion, based on cur audit and the repents of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component umits, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Boston, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereot and the respective budgetary comparison for the general
fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Linited States of America,
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In accordance with Crovermmment Awditing  Standards, we bave alzo issved our repont dated
Movember 15, 2 on owr conzideration of the City's internal contrel over financial repoing
and on our stz of s compliance with certain provizions of laws, regulations, conteacts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 15 to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.,
That repart is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in azsessing the resuliz of our audit,

Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 14 and the schedules of funding
progress and employers' contributions on page 62 are not reguired parts of the basic [nancial
statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures which
consisted principally of inguiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinicn on it

Cur audit was condected for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Boston's basic financial statements. The introductory section,
statzstical section, combining, individual fund statements and the schedules as listed in the
foregoing table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. These combining, individual fund statements and
schedules have becn subjected to the auditing procedurcs applicd in the aodit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not
been subjected o the auditing procedures applied in the avdit of the bazic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPmMe LLP

Boston, Massachusents
Mavember 18, 2005
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The City of Boston {fhe City) provides this Management's Dhiscussion and Analyveiz 1o preseol additional
mformation o the readers of the City’s Basic Financial Statements. This narrative overview and analvsis of the
financial activites of e City 15 [or the Gecal vear ended June 30, 2005, Beaders are encouragred o consider thes
information in conjunction with the additional information that is furnished in the City's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Beport (CAFR).

Oreepview of the Financiol Statements

This discussion and analysziz 15 intended o serve az an introduction to fhe City’s financial statements, The Ciry's
basic fnencial statements imclude thres components: 1) povermnmeni-wide financial statemeniz, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3} notes o the fvancial statements, This report also contaims reguired supplementary information
regarding historical pension information. These components are described below:

Basic Financial Statements

The financial statements include two types of Dnancial statemenis thal present dilferent views of the Cily - the
Governnteni-Wide Financiel Stavements and the Fund Financial Sratesenes, These financial statements alzo
include the Nodes do the Finanoial Statements hat exploin some of the information in the financial statements
and provide more detail,

Governnient-Wide Financial Statemenrs

The Goversnrent-Wide Financial Stafements provide a broad view of the Civ's operations in a manner simalar 1o
a private-secior businezs. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information abowt the Cine's
financial position, which azsisiz in asseszing the City’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal vear, These are
prepared veing the Oow of economic resources measurement [ocus and the acerual basis of accounting, This
basically means they follow methods that are similar to those used by most businesses, They take info account all
revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal yvear even 1f cash involved has not been received or paid. The
government-wide financial atatements include two stalements;

The Statement af Net Asseis presents all of the government’s asseis and liahilities, with the difference berween
the two reporled as “nel assels" Over Gme, increases o decreases in the City’s net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial pozition of the City iz improving or deteriorating,

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
sl recenl Decal vear, All changes in net assels are reporied as soon as the underlyving event siving nse to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows unil
fisture fizcal periods (such as uncollected raxes and earned but unused vacaton leave), This statement alzo
presents a companson between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the City.

Both of the above Gnancial stalementz have separate sections for the three different types of city programs or
activities. These three types of activities are;

Govermmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (federal and stare pranis), Most services oommally associated with city povernment fall inte this
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category, incleding general government, human services, public safery, public works, property and development,
parks and recreation, hbrury, schools, county, public health programs, judmment and claims, retirement costs,
state and district assessments, and debt service,

Business-Type Activities — These functions normally are intended to recover all ar a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and chargpes (o extemal users of goods and services. These business-tvpe activities of the
ity inglude the activities related 1o the Ciny's Convention Center Bond Fend and Hespital Bond Fund,

Disererely Presented Componen: Units — These are operations for which the City has financial accountability but
they have certain independent qualities az well, For the most pard, (hese entities operate similar 1o prvale-sector
buzineszes and the businezs-ivpe activities described above,

The City's four discretely presented major component units are:
Boston Public Health Commazsion
Boston Redevelopment Authority
Economic Development Indusinal Corporation
Truziees of the Boston Public Library

Complere financial sarements of the individual component units can he obtained from their respective
administrative offices. Additional information about the City's component uniiz 12 presented in the notes (o the
financial statements,

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and analysis.

Frund Fingnetal Statements

A fund iz a grouping of related accounis that is vsed (o maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other local povernmentz, uses fund accounting o ensure and
demonstrate compliance with Gnance-related legal requirements,

The Fund Financia! Starements focus on individual parts of the city government, reparting the Ciry’s operations
in more detall than the sovemment-wide statements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
calegories, I is important o note hat theze fond catepories wse dilferent accounting approaches and should be
interpreted differently. The three categorics of funds are:

1. Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Most of the basic services provided by the City are financed
through govemmental funds, Governmental funds are used (o account for essentially the same functions
reported gz governmental activities in the spovernmeni-wide fnancial statements. Howewver, unlike the
government=wide fnancial statements, the governmental fund Goancial slatements focus on near-teom
inflows and outflows of spendable resources. Thev also focus on the halances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fscal vear. Such imformation may be useful in evalvating the zovernment's
near-ferm fnancing requirements. Thiz approach iz knewn ag veing the fow of current Gnancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this approach, revenues are
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recorded when cash is received or when susceptible to acerual, Expenditures are recorded when liabilities
are mewrred and due, These statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's finances to assist in
determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available (o meet the current needs of the
ity

Becavsze the focus of govermmental funds 5 parower than that of the sovernment-wide financial
slatemenis, i iz uzeful to compare the information presenied for povernmental funds with similar
information prezented for governmental activifies in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
s0, readers may betier undersiand the long-term impact of the govemment’s near-term Anancing decisions.
Both the governmental fund belance sheel and the governmental fund statement of revenves, expendinires,
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this companison between governmental
funds and the governmental activities. These reconciliations are presented on the page immediately
[pllowing each governmental fund Gnancial statement,

The City presents four columns in the governmental fund balance sheet and in fhe governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes i fund balances, The City's three major governmental
funds are — the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund. All nenmajor
governmental funds are combined in the “Other Governmental Funds” columns on these statements. The
povernmental funds financial statements can be found immediately  following the  government-wide
statements.

Of the City's sovernmental funds, the General Fund 15 the only fund for which g budget s legally adopted.
The Budgetary Statement or Statement of Bevenwes and Expenditnres = Budgetary Basis iz presented on
page 21, This Statement provides & comparison of the original and final budget and the actual expenditures
for the current and prior vear.

In accordance with etate law and regelations, the Ciy's legally adopred general fend budget iz prepared on
a “hudgetary” basiz instead of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Among the key
differences between these two sets of accounting principles are that “budgetary™ records properiy tax as o
is levied, while GAARP records it a8 if becomes susceptible to gecmual, “badgetary™ records certain activities
and transactions in the general fund that GAAP records in separate funds, and “budgetary™ reconds az an
expenditure any amount rased o cover for o pror year deficil, and as a revenue any available funds raised
from prior vear surpluses, while GAAP ignores these impacts from prior vears. The difference in
accounting principles imevitably leads to vanving resuliz in excess or deficiency of revenues owver
expenditures, Additional information and a reconciliation of “bodgetary™ o GAAT stafements iz provided
in mode 4 1o the financial statements,

Proprictary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used o show actvities that operate more hike
these of commercial enterprizes. Because these funds charge fees for services provided fo culside
customers including local governments, they are known az enterprize funds. Propriectary funds provide the
same (ype of mformation as the government-wide hoancial saiements, only in more detail. Like (he
government-wide financial statements, proprictary fund financial statements wse the accrual basis of
accounting. Mo reconciliation 5 needed between the povernment-wide financial  statementz for
business-iype activities and the proprietary fund Onancial statements.
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The bazic propogiary funds: Onaocial salements can be found immediately following the governmental
fund financial statemcnts,

3 Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements — These funds are used o account for rezources held for the
benefic of parties owside the Ciy government, Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governmeni-wide
financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City's own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds i= much like that used for proprietary funds. They use
the acerual basis of accounting

The City's fiduciary funds arc the Employee Retirement Fund (the State-Boston Retirement Svatem),
which accounts for the transactions, assets, lisbilities, and net assets of the City employees’ pension plan,
and the Private Purpose Trust Funds, which includes moeney held and adminisiered by the City on behalf of
third parties.

The fiduciary funds fnencial statementz can be found immediately following the proprictary fund financial
Stalcments.

Noves to the Financial Statentesnts

The notes provide additional information that is essential 1o a Tull understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
immediately following the Gduciary fund finencial statemenis.

Mow for fiscal yvear 2005 is the implementation of Government Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statement
No. 40, Depasir and Investment Risk Disclosures, Please see nate 5 1o the financial statements for additional
reporiing and information.

Also for fiscal vear 2005, the City recorded a long-term intergovernmental receivable from the Commonwealth
of Muassachusettz (the Commonwealth) and revised itz estimate of wncollectible and notes receivables, See
note 18 1o the Duancial stalements,

Reguired Supplemientary Tuforniation

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary informartion, which includes &
schedule of funding progress and a schedule of emplover contributions for the State-Boston Eetirement System.

Ceovernment-Yide Financial Analysis

Thiz analysiz iz based on the statement of net assets and the statement of activities found on pages 15 and 16,
respectively, of the financial statements.

Government-Wide Highiighis

et Aseeis — The toral net asseits of the Ciy exceeded s habiives at fiscal year ending June 30, 2005 by
$873.7 million (prescnted as net assets). OF this amount, $372.3 million was reporied as “unrestricted nel assets.”
Unrestricted net assets represent the amount available to be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations fo
citizmens and creditors,
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Changes in Net Assets — The City™s toral net assets increased by $457.8 million in fiscal year 2005, Net assets of
governmental gctivities increased by 54352.6 million, while net assets of the business-type activities showed an
increase of $5.2 million.

Met Assets

As noled earlier, net assets may serve over ime as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
Ciry’s combined nel assels (govermment and business-tvpe activities) totaled 52757 million at the end of 2005,
compared to 5417.9 million at the end of the previous vear.

The components of net assets are comprsed of the following: the investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, equipment, and infrastructure (road, bridges, and other immovable assets), less any related debt used to
acquire that asset that is still outstanding — this amount is $108.9 million, indicating that the net book value of the
City's capital assels exceeds the amount of capital debt outstanding. The City uscs these capital assets o provide
CTVICES 1o citizens; consequentially, these asselz are nod available for future spending. Although the City's
imvestment 1n 1ts capital assets 15 reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the rezources needed (o
repay this debt must be provided rom other sources, since the capital asseis themselves cannet be uzed o
hguidate these liabilities,

A portion of the City's governmental net assets (30.7%) represents resources that are subject o external
restrictions on how they may be used, The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used (o meet the
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, Internally imposed desigmations of resources are not
presented as restricled net assets. Part of the unrestricted net assets (approximately $258.8 million) represents the
receivahle from the Massachusens School Building Authority (the MSBA) for the reimbursement of honded
school construction costs. The payments to be received from the MSBA coincide with the Citv's future debt
service payments. In fiscal 2006, the amount to be received by the City to pay debt service is approximately
5112.2 million. Although this receivable increases unrestricted net assets, il will not effect the City’s free cash
position.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City i reporting a positive balance for the government as a whole, The
negative balance reported for business-type activities is offsel by the positive balance reported for Governmental
Activities. The negative balance in business-type activitics 15 a result of special obligation bonds oustanding at
wear end. The negative balance is inténded 1o be covered by user charges, grants, and lease receipts from third

parties.
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Crovernmental Activities

The City's governmental activities net assets increased by 3452.6 million over the prior fiscal year, The
[ollowing net changes occurred during the course of aperations in fiscal 2005, Increases in assets included: cash
and investments increased by 5492 million, receivables increased by $342.2 million, and capital assets increased
bv $33.4 million. Changes in the lighility aceounts included: increases in warranis payable of $22.9 million, and
current long term debt of 5437 malhon, with 32.9 million and 520.1 million decreases in deferred revenue and
acereed liabilities, respectively,

The City’s largest sources of revenucs were property and excise taxes and pavments in lien of taxes of
51.28 billion and 37608 million of program revenues. Approximately 55.6% af the Citv's total revenue came
from taxes and payments in lieu of taxes, while 33.0% resulted from program revenues. Inferest, unresiricied
grunts and contributions, and other miscellanecus revenues tolaled $261.7 million. The City's expenses cover a
range af services, The largest expenses were for schools (8921.3 million), public safery (55425 million), public
works ($121.5 million), state and district assessments (51159 million), general government {$113.3), county
(31098 million), and property and development ($82.2 million), In 2005, governmental activities expenses
exceeded program revenues (ie., user charges, operating grants and capital grams) by 51,46 billion, This
shortfall was covered primarily through taxes ($1.28 billion) and grants and contributions not restricted
(323 1.3 mullion}.

Significant changes in revenues, specifically property tax revenue and federal and state grant revenue, allowed
for increased spending in expense categories sueh ag schools, public safety, and public works. Comparative data
on these revenues and expenses are summarized in the able “Cine of Boston Changes in Net Assets — Primary
Croveriimeni” on page 9,

Business-Type Activitics

Net assers from business-type activities increased by 55.2 million during fiscal 2003, This change in net assets
resulted primarily from an increase in excise tax revenues,

Financial Analysis of the City"s Individual Funds
This analysis is based on the Fund Financial Statements on pages 17 through 23.

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
reuITernenls.

Fand Highlighis

Governmental Fundy — Fund Balances — Ag of the close of fscal vear 2005, the Citv's governmental funds
reported a combined ending fund balance of 3857.3 million, an increaze of $23.1 million from the prior vear, OF
this total amount, ¥435.9 million represents the “wnreserved and undesignated fund balances,” with
£415.2 million of this amount in the gencral fund.
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Covernmental Funds

The foous of fhe Ciy's govermnmental funds 12w provide mlomation on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is wseful in assessing the City's financial reguirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as & useful measure of a government’s financial position at the end
of the fiscal vear,

eneral Fund — Fund Balanee — The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The City's General
Fund - Fund Balance Policy states in part to maintain a GAAP undesignated tund balance in the general fund
that is 10%, or higher, of GAAP general fund operating expenditures for the fiscal vear. The GAATP undesignated
fund balance at the end of fiscal yvear 2005 was $415.2 million, which represents approximately 21,9% of GAAP
general fund operaling expenditures.

However, because the City s required 1o follow the statutory bazis of accounting rather than GAAP for
determining the amount of undesignated fund balance that can be appropriated, it is the statetory (nol the GAAP)
fund balance that 12 vsed o calculated “free cash.” Free cash iz the amount of statutory fund balance in the
general fund, as cemified by the Commaonwealth Departiment of Revenwe that is available for appropriation and is
generaled when actual revenues, on a cash basiz, exceeded budeeted amounts and encumbrances are less than
appropriations, or hoth.

The City of Boston has catablished the General Fund-Fund Balance Policy 1o ensure that the City maintains
adequate levels of [und balance to mitigate current and future risks (i.e., revenue shorifails and unanticipated
expenditures), The policy in full states that the City shall maintain 8 GAAP undesignated fund balance in the
general fund that is 10% or higher than the current fiscal year’s GAAP general fund operating expenditures; amd
that the City shall only consider the certification of free cash (as defined by the Commaonwealth Depanment of
Revenue} in years where the appropriation of free cash shall oo canse the hscal vear's GAAP undesignuted fund
balunce to go below 10% of the fiscal year's GAAP general fund expenditures while maintaining a budgetary
undesignated fund balance berween 5% and 10% of budgetary operating expenses.

The City shall only consider the appropriation of cemified free cash to offset: (1) certain fixed costs such as
pension contributions and related post-employvment health benefits; and/or (2)to fund extracrdinary and
nonrecurring events as determined and certified by the Ciy Auditor,

The general fund budgetary highlights include ending fiscal vear 2005 with a 8.3 million dollar surplus, This
represents the City's 20th consecutive year with a balanced budget. Changes to the original budger resulied in an
increase of 389 thousand to the overall budger. These two supplemental appropriations, totaling 389 thousand,
were for the School Department. These appropriations were vsed for salary and wage increases, These
supplemental appropriations were funded from available revenue sources. During the year, revenues exceeded
budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw from the existing fund balance,

Spectal Revenwe — Fund Balunce — The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of speeific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for predefined purposes, The hscal year 2005 special revenue
fund balance 12 reported at §181.3 million, a $22.4 million increase from fiscal vear 2004,

Capiral Profeces Fund — Furd Balance — The capital projects lund accounts for financial resources o be used for
the acquizition or construction of major capital facilities, ather than thoze financed by proprietary funds and trust

12 (Continued)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Fequired Supplementary Information
Management’s Dizcoussion and Analysis

Jume 30, 2005

[unds, The hscal year 2005 capital projects fund balance 15 315.0 million. The 336.6 million decreaze from fiscal
vear 2004 iz atfributable to the tming of borrowing of General Oblization Bond Zales.

Chher Governmental Funds — Fund Balance — Other governmental funds account for assers held by the City in
permanent rus! funds. The fiscal vear 2005 other zovemmental funds fund balance iz 544,23 million, &
A thousand decrease from fiscal year 2004,

Proprictary Funds

The Ciiy'zs proproetary funds provide the same type of information found o the povernmeni-wide financial
statements for Dusiness-tvpe activities, Thiz informmation 15 presented on the same basiz of accounting, but 1n
more dedail,

The Ciy's proprietary [unds net assets for Oscal wear 2005 are 2 nepative 5545 million. As stated in the
dizcussion on the government-wide fnancial statements, the negative balance in the proprietary funds 15 & result
of the Convention Center Special Obligation Bonds and Hospital Special Obligation Bonds outstanding ar vear
en,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Cupital Assets

The Ciy’s investment in capital azzels for i1z governmental activities ag of June 30, 2005 mcluded £2.08 billion
of cost and accumulated depreciation of $1.06 billion, leaving a net hook value of $1.02 billion, This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress,
Infrastructure assets are ifems that are normally immaovable and have value only 1o the City, such as roads,
bridges, streets, sidewalks, drainage svstems, lighting svstems, and similar items.

The total increase in the Cily's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal vear was about 2.4% in terms of
net book value, However, actual expenditures fo purchase or construet capital assets were 581.3 million for the
year. Most of this amount was used for the purpose of constructing or reconstructing buildings and building
improvements, Depreciation charges for the vear tolaled 3479 million. Addinenal informaton on the City’s
capital aszets can be found in note # to the financial statements,

Long-Term Oblimations

Debt Administvation — The authority of the City o incur deb iz governed by federal and state laws that restrict
the amounts and purposes for which & municipality can incur debt. At vear end, the City had $835.7 million in
Creneral Obligations Bonds principal ouwlstanding — a decreaze of 8,.5% over last year.

he key factors in this decrease were the izsuance of the February 1, 2005 Series A £127.28 million General
Chligaton Bonds, 3528 million of which were Befunding Bonds.

Creneral Obligation Bondz are backed by (the [ull faih and credit of the City, including the Ciiv's power to levy
additional taxes to ensure repayment of the debt. Accordingly, all general ohligation debr currently ourstanding
hag been approved by a vote of the City Council.

13 {Continuwed)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information
Muanagement’s Discussion and Analvais

June 30, 2005

Notes Pavalle and Other Long-Term (Migations — The City’s general long-term notes and other obligations
increased by $26.5 million, or 7.1%, during the current fiscal vear. The key factors were net increases in
workers” compensation of 519.6 million and eompensated absences of $6.5 million.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt obligations can be found in note [0 of the nofes to basic
financial staternents.

Kegquests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide & general overview of the City's finances for all of the City’s citizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. This financial report secks to demonstrate the City's
accountability [or the monev it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to: City of Boston, Auditing Department, Boston City
Hall, Room M-4, Boston, MA 02201,

14
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Eeconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Metl Assels

Jume 30, 2005

{In thouzands)

Tedal Tund balance — Governmental funds

Amaonniz reporied for governmental activities in the statemnent of net asseis are
different because:
Capital azselz used i povernmental activiiies are not financial resources and
therefore are nol reported in the funds. These assets consist of?
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infraztructure
Consireclion in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Adiust deflerred revenues and recetvables to record revenues on an acerual basis
Internal service funds are mcloded m the govemment-wide statements
Bond issuance costs are capitalized in the govermment-wide statements

Some liabilities are nol due and payable in the current peniod and therefore are
ot reporied in the lunds, Those habilities consist of:
Creneral obligation bonds and notes
Capital leages
Bond izsue premiuims
Dreferred bond gains {losses)
Acerned inferest on bonds
Compensated absences
Landfill
Judgments and claims
Tax abatements

Met azsels of governmental activities

Bee accompanying notes o basic nancial statements.
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B, 28]

15,866
79,463
1,177.761
176,628
308,062
319,401
(1.064,347)

1,013,034

360,959
2,600
2,875

(H85,293)
(13,413)
{31,876)

11,327
{19,403)

(174,664)
{14,489)
{45,748)
(27,1000

{1.300,659)

060,150




CITY OF EOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Feconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Staitement of Activitics

Year ended June 20, 2005

Mel change in fund balances — total governmental funds 5 25,121

Armounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
ditferent hecause:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement
of activities, the eost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated uscful

lives. Capital outlays (381,260) exceeded depreciation expense (347 885). 33372
Tax revenues in the statement of activities thatl are nof reporied as revenues
i the governmental funds. (11,E50)

Proceeds of long-term debt (5137 384) increase long-term liabilities in the

statement of net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the

govemnmental funds. Repayment of bond principal (5195,010) is an cxpenditure

in the govemmental funds, but reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of

net assets. This is the amount Ty which repavinents exceeded procesds. ST6e26
Bond premiums net ($8,233) increase the long-term liabilities in the statement of

net assets, but are included in the operating statement of the povermnmental

funds. Bond issuance costs net (82,053 are expenditures in the governmental

funds, before defermred assets in the statement of assets, This is the amownd

by which premivms exceeded 1Bzuance costs. (6,150
Special items related 1o legislative changes and changes in estimates of
uncollectible receivables 348427

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and thercfore are not reporied as expenditures in the
povernmental funds. Thiz amount represents the increase in Babilities lor
compensated absences (56,510, judgments and claims (520,280, and
interest payable (51,830} offsel by o decrease in landfill liabilities, 38,

payroll settlements, 521,303, and property and development expense, 2,505 (4.752)
Met income from the intermal 2ervice fund which 1z presented in the statement
of activities, but not in the govermmental funds, 10,128
Change in net assels of governmental activities 8 452 5u2
=aa——————

See accompanying notes to basic Anancial statements,



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Staement of Bevensss and Expenditures — Budgeiany Bazs
LGaenernl Fund - Badges and Acal

Year ended June 30, 2005
[walh eomrrative sctual amoants doe 2004)

(In thesssands)
ZIHI5 Varinnee
Chrjginal Final VT 2014
lrualzei hudget Actual tlander Agtunl
Revenuez and ol avarlable lands:
Feal aml persanal property
laxes, nel E’ 10105 029 1,105,024 111k, 336 1,307 1,052 067
Excises AR50 GE, R HEGST 159,707 94 2H%
Commonwealth of Miassachusers 523,342 S1% 542 4374855 14313 521,232
Diepartmental aml other revenos Eh et ELTE B 53,142 B ] SL0A%
Fines il 544 ] B 63,280 14346 a3+
Payments in lico of txes LR ) 39,55 4172187 Z.219 42,373
Dnvestneml inconss 7300 T30 17787 10,487 1.792
Licenses and permits 25350 25,330 33521 2471 o wE
Olher availabiz Fands 2855 2505 5529 (23,578 pEr ek
Toanl revenss and
aer avanlable funds 1.6 012 192020 |.'}3I,I-_-1-§1_ 51,224 1Roz, 787
Expencitures:
CGenemal povernment 56,911 GOAGS 20,837 S T5.035
Huaman servaos 24,514 23986 33853 133 27,645
Pubhe saliy A, 144 H1E anl 41376 (20714} G RIT
Mublic warks 01,152 U453 | (5, G495 {14,247y 47639
Property and developmeni 22475 25480 Xa425 53 26,400
Parke and rocreation 14,425 15,471 15,170 i e 12434
Library 15,739 20,501 26,5 I 24,084
Sehals SR, 10E R T HE0 %] 2k Ha6,539
Easton Public Healch Commissicn 0,388 GlLE6E 0,568 - S8, 762
Jedpments and claims 1,50 3,500 10,884 (7.384) 18 KdZ
Cither emplos s Benchies 146,259 146,155 I-I-TlEI'_IS [1.545] 133,205
Eeliremenl cosls 150,463 151,443 151463 141,867
Slate anxd dismict nsssssments e B 115,265% 115,854 123 111 441
Drebe requiremnents 121578 11,352 11E,31 22 133 Hi&
Tolal expendilumes 1929112 1,520, 11 R {42,241 LESE A0
Excess of revermes and
other avpilahle fussds
AT Expendslures 3 —- H.EBE- LS 4 585

Sew necompanying notes o basiz fsancial slaements.



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of MWet Asgels — Fropeistary Funds
Jurne 30, 2005
(In thousands)

Enterprize funds

Convention Haspital
center revenue Intermal
bomds bonds Tatal service
Assere:
Cuarrent assets:
Cash ond investmanis 3 - -— — 30535
Casgl and imvestments held by trustees SO0 (U 010 —
Receivahles, nel —_ - - 154
Total current assets 3008 14, By S0 30,7309
HONSUImens s5ses;
Doe from ather Nmels - SRT
Tue from compenens unils == 116370 119,370 —_
Clther assets L5369 14518 2057 1,873
Total nonsument assets 1,369 1114988 113,357 2453
Total asseis 31413 131,954 163,347 33,1064
Liakilitics:
Current liabilities:
Warmnts and accounts payvable — — — 39
Accrmied liabilities - - _— [ [
[hae b other funds 15,0 - 1 8,00k
Awcrued dnterest pavable Aa2 2054 PR —
Current partion of lang-term deh 2815 fx, 305 0250 —_
Tenal current Trabilines 507 5350 30, 16 i 50
Momcumrent Ll igies:
Specinl ohligotion bonds By, THS - 100, 783 —
Revenue bonds — 110,508 100,508 —
Total nencurrent linhilities 104, THS 110,558 217,683
Total liahilitics 128,592 115,257 247 B G, 31
Ml assots:
Unzesiricted 1T 12,687 (84.482) 266460
Tatal nel assels i {017 12,697 (54,482 26640

Ses accompanying nobes o Ixazic finaneial satements.



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Atatemnemt o Bevenes, Expenses, and Changes in Nel Asses — Fropigary Funds
Yeor endad Junc 30, 2003
{In Ueausanday

Enterprise funds
nspital

Cnmvention
center revenie Incermal
bomils bnmils Tatnl SETVICE
CIpCraling revenaes:
Contributions b3 = R e
Stane aid — pledged for dela service 28,028 - 28,028
Departmenial and odher = — = ==
Teanl operaning revenuwes 2,028 JE 2R predq el
Liperaling cxpeinEcs:
Faymenis made on behallof Staee &4 A4 =
Healih benediis — — = 32,684
Tatal aperaling expenses i 54 22,682
CrpeTating iniane 27,044 — 2704 10,128
Marsperling revenie (expensel;
Inbergovermmental — stale grants 207 — 297 —
Ievvcstment carnings — pledged for debd senace 5,200 5,295 —
Iwcsmnient carnings — odlser B2} - B3 —
Interest expense 1]y (5, I4) (11,185}
Towal nenoperating revenoe [expmes) 1,561 189 {4. 770 —
Incami hediore transfirs TIOR3 189 23172 10,125
Transfer to general fund (REEENEN — R -—
Change in net assets 44063 .3 5,172 10,128
Tatal et asscis — beginning (102162 12,508 [ 16,532
Tolal net assels - ending 5 (97,175 12,647 (54 AR 26,60
.

See pocompanying noes w basic financial statemants,




CITY OF BOSTOMN, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprctary Fund Types
Year cnded Juns 30, 2005

Cazh flows from operating activilies:
Cash received from Siace qid
Onber cash recerved
Cash paid 1o venders
Cash payments on behal Fof Stale

Met cash provided inaperations

Cash flows from poscpital nancing activities
Cirants received from Sinte
Irderest paxl on deht
Lease recgipis

Transfers to ather funds
Hepavneent of Bomg-lerm debd

mer caal provided (used) by
noneapiral financing asivities

Cash flows From imvesiing aciivilies:
LIRS 1 e R TR R TTi

et el provided by investing activities
Inzranse in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash squivalents, beminning of year
Cash and cash equivabents, end of vear

(I ihousands)

Enrerprise lunds

Cumvention M nspital
cenier revenoe Incernal
bonds homds Total service
5 R LS — ZR02E 02,053
e (B2 10D
(R4 = (B4 e
A7 5 — I7.8ad 10,853
a7 o 207 -
LR [5.281) (11,323} =
- 11,50k | 1,5 _—
{17 ey o (17,0610} -
(2, AN (G125 {8,905y =
{25,525} 238 (15, 267) -
823 - 523 =
B23 823 =
3242 258 1,500 10,853
206,802 18,708 46,510 16,702
3 30,10 19,906 30,0010 555
I [Conlzmeed)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Stwiement of Cash Flows — Propnemry Fund Types
Vear ended Jume 50, 2005

{In thousandsi
Enterprise funids
Caomventon wapital
CEREET rEVEnNE Imfermal
homds bisnads Taotal serviee

Reconciliation of operating income o cash
provided by operiting activities
Liparating Mmoo ¥ 27044 27044 160,128
Reconciliation of operating meoms 1o net
cash provided by operatmg activities:
Changes in operaiing asseis and |aabilmes:

Accounts receivahles e e — 141
Crher ageets = L1k
Diie (1) from ather funds = = =L 1kl
Accounts pavable and accrued lizhilities . 173
Mol cash provided by operating
T % 2T 0L — 27544 10, H53

See accompanying nobes o basic financial sialemenis



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
statement of Fiduciary Met Azsets — Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2003

{In thousands)

Employee Private
retirement purpnse Apeney
plans Trusts Tunds
Azsets:
Cash and cash equivalents & 2438 74,201 1,278
Eeceivables:
[nterest and dividends 053 -—
Securities sold 36,841 —
Other Q1,286 2452 --
Total receivables 155,180 2,452
Invesiments, at fair value:
=hori-term:
Domestic 326,386 - —
International 13054 — —
Equity:
Domestic 1505310 — —
International 623,624 — —
Fixed income:
Domestic 403,104 — —
International 216935 — -
Feal estate 170,789 — -
Yenture capital funds 222230 — --
Total investments 3,673,537 —
Securities lending short-term collateral
investment pool 210 125 -— —
Oiher assets . 30 —
Total azsets 4,050,284 TH,683 1.278
Lighilities:
Accounts pavable 13,294 2,209 —
Securities purchased 270,021 — —
Collateral held on secunitics lending 219,129 — —
Eefunds payable and other - — 1,27
Toal habilities A02444 2,200 1.278
—
Met assets:
Held in trust tor pension benefits and
other purposes 5 3,547 840 74,474
—_— — |

Ser accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

26



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Met Azsets —
Fiduciary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2005

{In thouzands}

Employee Private
refirement purpose
plans trusis
Additions:
Contribulions:
Employers k3 170,043
Emplovees 106,577
Dronations and ofler — 20,656
Total contributions 276,620 T
Investment carnings;
Mel appreciation in the fair value of invesimenizs 292,331 —
Interest and dividends A3 5049
Less investment expenses (0,740 i
Met investment earnings 367634 509
From secunties lending activities:
Securities lending income 3070 =
Less borrower rebates and foes (2.743] —
Met ineome from securities lending activitizs 322 -
Total net invesiment income 357,956 5040
Intergovernmental 14,670
Total additions 059,246 21,255
Deductions:
Benefis 321,603 —
Eeimbursement to ofher systems 0,449 —
Eefunds of contributions 14,042 —
Admimisiralive expenses 3. 128 1E.a00
Total deductions 348,222 15,000
Chuange in net assets 311024 2655
Met assets, beginning of vear 3236810 T1.812
Met assets, end of wear 5 3,547 B4 74474
e —————

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Fotes 1o Basic Financial Stalements
June 30, 2005

The Financial Reporting Entity

The accounting policies followed in preparing the accompanying basic financial statements are as follows:

i)

i)

foh

FPrimavy Gavernnent

The City of Boston (the City), incorporated as a town in 1630 and a5 a city in 1822, now exists under
Chapter 486 of the Act of 190% and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948 of the Commonwealth of
Massachusets (the Commenwealth) which, as amended, constitute the City's Charter, The Maver is
elected 1o a lour-year term and serves as chiel executive officer of the City. The Mayor has general
supervision of and control over the City’s hoards, commissions, officers, and departments, The
legislative body of the City is the City Council, which consisis of thineen elected members serving
wo=vear lerms.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the City of Boston and its component units.
The component units discussed below are included in the Ciry’s reporting entity because of the
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City,

Blended Component Unit Disclosure

The following component unit has been presented as & blended component unit {included in the
primary govermment) because the component unit provides services almost exclusively to the
PTIMATY EOVETMMEn:

State-Bosten Retirement System (SBRS) - The SBRS is & defined benefit contributory
retirement svilem created under state statute. 11 s administered by & Retirement Board
comprised of five members: the City Auditor, who serves ex officio; two individuals clected by
participants in the system; a fourth member appointed by the Mayor; and a fifth member
chosen by the other members. The SBRS provides pension benefits to retired City emplovees.

A complete set of financial statements for SBRS for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2003 can he
obtained through the City Auoditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachusetts
02201,

Discretely Presenred Component Uniis Diselosure

These component unils are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City but are included becausze the City is financially accountable for and is able to impose
its will on the organizations. Unless otherwize indicated, the notes to the basic financial stalements
pertain onfy 1o the primary povernment becawse certain disclosures of the component units are not
significant relative to the tetal component units and to the primary government. A description of the
component units, critera for inclusion, and their relationship with the City are as follows:

Boston Redevelopment Authority (BRA) — The BRA is a public body politic and corporaie
constituting the City’s redevelopment authority and exercising the powers of 2 planning board
for the Citv. The BRA is governed by a five-member board, four of whom are appointed by
the Mayor, Itz purpose is to provide planning support for major construction and
redevelopment activity in the City,

28 (Continueed)
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Motes 10 Basie Financial Statements
June 30, 2(H)15

Economic Development and Indostrial Corporation of Bosten (EDIC) — The EDIC is a
body politic and corporate and an instrumentality of the Commonwealth. 1 is governed by the
same persons appointed as members of the BRA board. The EDIC has various powers o agsist
industrial development projects in the City, and topether with the BRA, assists the City with its
economic development funcrion.

Boston Public Health Commission (PHC) — The PHC iz & body politic and corporate and
public instrumentality of the Commaonwealth, established by Chapter 147 of the Acts of 1995,
PIIC is governed by a seven-member board, six of whom are appointed by the Mavor and
confirmed by the City Council, and one of whom 15 the chief executive officer of the Boston
Medical Center (BMC). The PHC iz responsible for the implementation of public health
programs i the City,

Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston (TPL) - The TFL is a nonprofit
organization gualified as a tax-exempt entity wnder Section S01(¢)(3) of the Intemnal Revenue
Code, Trustees of TPL are appointed by the Mayor. The TPL was established o benefit the
public library zystem of the Ciry,

The financial statements of the discretely presented component units are included for their respective
fiscal year ends, which is June 30, 2005,

Complete financial statements of these discretely presented component units can be obtained through
the Cily Audiior’s office, Eoom M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachuzsets 02201, In addition,
condensed financial statements for the dizcretely presented component units are included innote 17,

Kelated Oroanizations

The Mawvor 15 also responsible for appointing members of the governing bodies of the Boston
Houzing Authority, Boston Industrial Development Finance Authorty, and Boston Water and Sewer
Commission; however, the City’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond
making hese appointments,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Boston, Massachusetts, conform 1o accounting principles generally
accepted n the United States of Amenca as applicable to povernmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following i a summary of the more significant
poelicies followed by the Ciry:

fue)

Crovernment-Wide and Fund Finarcial Stafements

The government-wide financial statements (i.c., the statement of ner asseiz and (he statement of
changes in nel assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and 15 component units, For the most par, the effect of interfund activity has been
removid from these statements. Govermmental aerivites, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from businmess-type activiries, which rely o a
significant extent on fees and charges for support, Likewise, the primory grovernment is reported

28 (Continucd)
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separately from certain legally separate component wnity for which the primary government is
financially accountable,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or zegment are oflsel by program revenuss, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Progegoy revengers incluode 1) charges o customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meecting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment, Taxes and other ilems not properly included
AMONE Program revenues are reported instead as general reventes.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the povernment-wide financial statements. Major
individual govemmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are repored as separate
columns in the fund fnancial statements.

Measurement Fecus, Basis af Acopaniing, and Firancial Staterment Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resourees measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements, Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a lishility is
tncurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar iterns are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibiliny requirements impozed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as progras eevenies inchade 1) charges to cestomers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants end contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, inciuding special assessments, Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Governmental Fund Financiol Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cwrend finoncial resources
measrenents focus and the modified acerual bavis of accounsing. Revenues are recognized as soon
az they are “susceplible to accrual” (1e.. both measurable and available) Kevenues not conzsidered 1o
be available are recorded as deferred revenue,

The City applies the susceptible to accrual cnteria to property taxes and intergovernmental revenues
In applying the susceptible o acerual concept Lo intergovernmental revenues, there are essentially
two types of revenues. In one, resources must be expended on the specific purpoge or project before
any amounts will be reimbursed to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the
amount of cxpenditures incurred. In the other, respurces are virwally unresiricted and are usually
revocghle by the grantor only for failure to comply with preseribed compliance requirements, These
respurces are reflected as revenues at the ime of receipt or earhier of the suscepiible to acomal eriteria
are met. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied,
provided they are collecied within 60 days after vear end.

a0 (Continued)
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Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures,
as well as expendilures related to compensated absences and judgments and claims, are recorded
only when payment is matees and due,

Froprictary Fund, Fiduciary Fund, and Component Unil Financial Statements

Private-gecior standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in bath the governmeni-wide and propoetary fund financial statements o the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting  Standards Board, Governments also have the oprion of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-tvpe activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
hmilation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-gector puidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operasing revenues and expenses from somaperating items, Operating
revenues and cxpenses generally resull from (he collection of revenue pledzed to repay debt. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are leage receipis and excise taxes. The
principal cperating revenues af the City's internal service funds are charges 1o other funds for health
insurance. Operating expenses for enterprize funds and intemal service funds include the interest,
administrative expenses, and vendor payments. All revenues and expenses nol meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Govermmental funds — The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The geweral fend 15 the Cuy's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the gencral government, except those required 1o be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fimd accounts principally for the activities funded by federal and state
grant revenue sources and cerlain other revenues that are legally rearricted to expenditures for
specificd purposcs.

The capital activities fimd accounts for bond proceeds and grant revenues used for the
acquizition or constrection of the Cily capital facilities,

Proprietary fundys — The City reports the fallowing major proprietary funds:

The convenlion cemfer bond fund accounts for the City activities related to the financing for the
construction of a new state-owned convention center. Revenue debt issued in connection with
this fund is payable solely by specified local and state receipis,

The fiospital revenue bond find accounts for the activities related to the Boston City Hospital
Fevenue Bonds., These Bonds are payable zolely from the morizage note payments reccived
from the Public Health Commission. These Bonds are repaid from a pledged revenee source
from PHC.

Fiduciary funds - Additionally, the City reports the following fiduciary fund (vpes:

The private-prpose frust fund 15 used to account for resources legally held in trust for the
benefit of individuals, private organizations, or ather govemments.

3l (Contimed )
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The pension fresr fund accounts prancpally for the activities of the State-Boston Employees
Retirement System, a blended component unit, which accumulates resources for pension
benefit payvments (o retired Cily emplovees.

The agency fimd is used to report funds held by the City in a purely custodial capacity.

The City also uses an internal service fund to account for its selfeinsured health cosis. Although the
fund iz presented in a separate column in the accompanying financial statements, it is not considered
a major fumnd.

Az & general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources firsl, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Caslh Equivalenis

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, investments with original matunties of three months or
less when purchazed are considersed o be cash equivalents,

Buasiz af Tnvestmient Valuation

Investments are presented in the accompanying basic financial statements at fair value. Where
applicable, fair values are based on quetations from national securitics exchanges, except for certain
investments of the State-Boston Retirernent System which are described in notes 5 and 11. Further,
incoame oo investments 1 recoenied in the same fund az the related investmenis,

The City invests in the Massachuserts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which is an cxtemnal
investment pool and is not SEC registered, The fund is state regulated and is valued at current share
price.

Interfund Receivalies and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinghorrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances toffrom other funds™ (i.e.. the noncurrent portion of interfund lnans).
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reporied in the government-wide financial statements ag “internal balances.”

Advances hetween funds, as reporied in the fund financial statements, are offzet by a fund balance
reserve pocount in applicable governmental funds 1o indicate that they are not evailable for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources,

Uincollectible Tox aond her Receivabies

Al recervables are shown net of an allowance Tor wncollectibles, Amounts considered to he
ungollectible are based on the type and age of the related receivable,
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Juae 30, 2005

fob Capital Assers

)

{i}

Capital assets, which include property. plant, equipment and infrasmuciure assets (e, roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable govemmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements, Capital assets are defined by the
City as assels with an mitial, individual cost of more than 525,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of two years, Such assets are recorded at histomical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated eapital assets are recorded at estimated [oir market value at the
date of donation, Any significant construction commitments are encumbered at vear-end in the
City’s Capital Project Fund.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assel or materally
extend azzels’ lives are nol capilalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, ag well as the component unitz, are
deprecialed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Y ears
Buildings 30
Building improvements 0
Infrastructure 30
Land improvements — major 30
Land improvements — playgrounds 15
Computer upgrades 14
Equipment and machinery 10

Computers and related equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Muotor vehicles

fad Tad

Compensated Absences

Employvees are granted sick and vacation leave in varving amounts. Upon retirement, termination, or
death, certain employees arc compensated for wnused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain
limitations) &t their then current rates of pay. The porion of the liability related to unused sick and
vacation ime hat bag matwred or 15 due az of June 30, 2005 1= related to the voluntary retirement
incentive and is recorded in the governmental fund financial statements. The unamortized portion is
presented in the povernment-wide statement of net assets. The liability for vacation leave is based on
the amount earned hut not used; for sick leave, il is based on the amount acoumulated at the halance
sheet date (vesting method). The liability for both amounts iz caleulated based on the pay or salary
ratcs in effect at the balance sheet date.

Long-Term Oblizatinns and Related Cosis

Premiums, Discounts, and Issue Costs — In the govemment-wide financial statements, and
proprictary fund types in the fund financial slalements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as lishilities in the applicable povemmental activities, business-type

Fad
Lad
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activines, or propoetary fund fype stalement of net assetz. Bond premiums and discounis, as well az
isguance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount, Bond issvance
oosts are reported as deferred chorges and amortized over the term of the related debit.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund tvpes recopnize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond 1ssuance costs. during the current period. The face amount of debi isseed is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
gources while discountz on debt isswances are reporled as other Anancing uses. [ssuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds reccived, arc repomed as deln service
expendifures,

Arbitrage Kebate — Febatable arbitrage carnings are caleulated for the City by tlurd parties and 15
accounted for as a hiability in the general fund to the extent it is “duc and pavable.” At June 30, 2003,
an accumulated arbirrage rebate liabiliy of 319 millicn was recorded in the general fund.

Frund Eguity

In the fund Gnaocial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by oulside parties for use for a
gpecific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject
i change,

Ty Abatenent Refunds

Matured tax abatement refunds that are due and payable at June 30 have been recorded as a liability
in the general fund, Mher refunds have been recorded in the sovermmment-wide statement of net
asseds,

Lawd il Closwre ad Postelosure Care Costy

Srate and federal regulations require the City to place a Anal cover on is Gardner Street landfill sie
when it stops sccepting waste and to perform cemain maintenance and monitoring functions at the
sife for 30 vears after closure, Al Jupe 30, 2005, 1005 of the Gardner Sireet landfill site had been
uzsed and had not accepied solid waste for several vears, The City bas completed the covening of this
sife in accordance with applicable laws and regulatons.

The total current cost of landfll closure and postclosure care 15 an estimate, subject o changes
resulting from inflation, deflation, technology or other changes in applicable laws or regulations.
Such costs are recopnized as expenditures in the general fund to the cxtent that they are due or
matured and are expected (o be paid with expendable available hoancial resources. The total hability
is reported in the government-wide statement of net assers. Expenditures related 1o the Gardner
et landfill site closure and posiclosure care in fiscal vear 2004 were approximately 335 thousand.

Live of Extimares

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally aceepted in the United Stales of Amenca reguires management to make estimates and
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assumptions that affect the reported amounts of aszets and habilites and disclosure of contingent
aszets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the repored amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting penod. Actuasl resuliz could differ from those estimates.

Short-Term Dbt

During fiscal vear 2003, the Ciey had no short-ferm debi issued or ouistanding,

Budgetary Lrata

The general fond is the only fund for which a budget iz legally adopied, The budgets for all departments
included in the general fund of the City, except the Schoal Department, are prepared under the direction of
the Mavor and City Council. The School Department budget s prepared under the dirsction of the School
Comimities,

Original and supplemental appropriations are submitted by the Mayor, approved by the City Council and
lapse at vear-end unless encumbered. The legal level of control over appropriations iz al the department
lewel, Amendments o the criginal bedgel muzt be approved by the City Council, except for a reallocation
of appropriations of up to 33 million, which the Mayor may approve. Further, the City Auditor, with the
approval of the Mavor, may make fransfers [rom any appropriation (o any other appropriation for purposes
of eliminating deficits before closing the books for the fiscal vear. After the close of the fiscal year, the
City Auditor may, with the approval of the Mavor, apply any income, taxes, and funds not disposed of and
miake translers [rom any appropoation o any oher appropriation for the purpose of closing the accouniz
for the fiscal vear. There were no supplemental appropriations, other than the aforementioned ransfers, for

the fscal vear ended June 30, 2005,

The City musl establish 512 property tax fate each vear so that the rezulting propercty ax lesy will comply
with the limits required by Proposition 2-1/2 {note 6). The tax levy must equal the sum of (a) the aggregate
of all annual appropriations for expenditures; plug (b) the reserve accounts descnbed o the following
paragraph; plus {c) provigion for the prior fiscal wvears’ deficits, if any; less (d) the aggregaie of all
nonproperty ax revenucs projecied to be received by the City, including available funds, in amounts
certified or approved by the Commonwealth [or (ax rate purposes,

[n accordance with the 1986 amendments to the Funding Loan Act of 1932, the City has established roo
reserve funds. The first 12 & budget reserve fund which s requicsd o be lunded in stages (o a Gral leve] of
2=172% of the prior vear's overall depanmental appropriations, excepi the School Depammen:, by the
beginning of fiscal year 1990, It iz available to be applicd to extraordinary and unforeseen expenditures.
The second 15 a separate resecve [und of 1% w 2-1/2% of the current vear appropriation of the School
Deparment (o be applied to overexpendipores in that depariment.
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The City's peneral fund budget 15 prepared on a basis other than accounting principles gencrally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAT). The “actual™ results column in the statement of revenues and
expenditures — budgetary basis — general fund is presented on a “budgetary bagis™ to provide a meaningful
comparisen of actual rezuliz with the budget, The major differences between the budzet and GAAP basis,
where applicable, are thar:

in}  Revenues are recorded when cash is received, except for real cstate and personal property taxes
which are recorded as revenue when levied (budget), a= opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP),

ib)  Encumbrances and continming appropriations which are recorded as the equivalent of expenditres
(hudget), az opposed (oo reservation of fund balance (GAAP).

() Certain activitics and transactions are presented in separate funds (GAAP), rather than as
components of the general fund (hudget).

rdy  Amounnis raized for the prior vears” defcilz and available funds [rom prior vears’ sumpluses are
recorded as revenue items (budget), but have no effect on GAAP revenues,

In addition, there are certain dilferences i classiBeations between revenues, expenditures, and ransfers,

The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budgetary and GAAP basis accounting
principles for the vear ended June 30, 2005 (in thousands):

Exvess of
Crler revenue and
financing other
SOUTCES financing
Bevenue _Expenditures {uses), oot SOUTLES
A repored on a budgetary basas £ 198045 1872082 == 8,333
Adjustiments:
Revenues to modified accrual
hasis 31321 — — 31,31
Expendiiures, encumbrances, and
neemials, net — (153 — 150
Feelagsileations:
State-funded weachers'
refirerent cosls {76,321 (T6R5210 —y
Conmvention Center fund revenue {ER.00 — AL
Transfers {2504 — 4,504
Az reported on 2 GAAF basis ¥ 1912721 1505421 22504 340,804
T —

(3} Deposits and Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the namre of deposits and investments available o the
City, Depositz, including demand deposits, money markets and certificates of deposit in anv one financial
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institution, may not exceed cerain levels unless collateralized by the financial institulion involved.
Investments may b made in unconditionally guaranteed US. Government obligations having matrities of
a year or less from the date of purchaze, or through repurchase agreements with maturities of no greater
than 90 days in which the underlving securitics consist of such obligations. Other allowable investments
include authorized bonds of all states, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper rated within the three
highest classifications established by rating agencies, and units in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository
Trust (MMDT). The Treasorer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial management
of the MMDT, @ local investment pool for cities, towns, and other state and local agencies within the
Commaonwealth. The City™s fair value of its investment in the MMDT represents their value of the pool’s
shares.

For the year ended June 30, 2005, the City and its blended component unit adopted (Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASRE) Mo, 40, Deposit and Tevestmens Risk Divelosures. The
standard requires that entitiss disclose essential risk information about deposits and inveatments.

Primary Government {except the pension troust Tond}y

fal  Custodial Credis Risk

Custodial credit risk s (he msk that in the event of bank fatlure, the City’s deposiis may not be
returmed. The City carmies deposilts and investments thet are fully nsured by FDIC insurance,
collateralized and depositz that are not collateralized and are uninsured. As of June 30, 2005, the
bank balances of uninsured and uncollateralized deposits totaled spproximately 33,7 million.

M Tnvesimeni Policy

The City's primary concern in connection with its investment activities is a concern shared by all
municipal governments: the preservation of capital. The City's investment policy establishes a
domain in which all of the City’s investment activities may be safely conducied while it sinves to
use its capital resources as efficiently as possible, The frontiers of that domain are fixed by
Maussachusetts General Laws MG c. 44, sec, 55, which prohibits Massachusells communities
from investing in certain categories of high-risk investments; limit the amount of the City's bank
depozils in any one financial instimtion; and which estahlish qualifying criteria for banking
institutions.
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fop  fnterest Bate Risk

[nterest rate risk is the nsk that changes in interest rates will adversely affiect the Fair value of an
mvestment. The [ollowing is a listing of the City’'s fixed income investments (in thousands) and
related maturity schedule as of June 30, 2005:

Investment type FFair value Luss than 1 1-5
Externul investment pool 5 H20 iyl —
Mutual funds 45,960 45,960 —
L&, Tressury notes and bonds [,6T0 - 10,670
Domestic corporate 4,472 - 4,472
b3 61,722 46,580 = 15.142

fdy  Credis Risk

The City's fixed income investments as of June 30, 2005 were rated by Standard and Poor’'s and/or
an equivalent national rating organization and the ratings are presented below {in thousands) using
the Standard and Poor’s rating scale:

Investment tvpe Fair value Rating
hlutual funds b 43,960 At
Exrernal investment pool G20 Mol rated
Domestic corporate 4,472 AAA 1o BEE+

h 21,052

fe)  Cencentrafion Risk

The City adheres to the provisions of M.G.L. ¢. 44, sec. 55 when managing concentration risk,
M.G.L. c. 44, sec. 55 contains several restrictions limiting where and under what circumstances the
City may deposit itz funds. Pursuant to MG.L. ¢, 44, see. 53, cities and towns in the Commonwealth
may deposit available fund balances in banks, trust companies, or banking companics, provided that
the amounts deposited do not exceed 60% of the capital and surplus of an institution unless
sanstactory security for the amount in excess of 60% iz provided by the depository,

Stale-Boston Retirement System (SBRS or the System)

(el Crstodiod Crodis Risk

Custodial eredit nisk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the System’s deposits may not be
returned. The System camries deposits that are fully insured by FDIC insurance or collateralized with
securitics held by the System or the Syitem’s agent in the System’s name. The System also carries
deposits that are not collateralized and are uninsured. As of December 31, 2004, the bank balances of
uninsured and uncollateralized deposits totaled approximately 53,950,000,

25 (Continued)
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Trvesimeinr Policy
The provisions of MLG.L, oo 32, sec 22020 povern the System’s investment praciice.

Diverzification iz amained theough wvared investment management sivles that comply with
Massachusetts state law. This is accomplished through the retention of investment managers that
adhers o MUGL. ¢ 32, sec. 2303}, the “Prudent Person™ rule.

The Svatemn has retained an investment consuliant o work with the Board in a Dduciary capacity o
assure that strateric investment diversification 15 attained, o cmploy Invesiment managers with
expertise i (heir cespective assel classes, and o clogely monitor the implementation  and
performance of the respective investment sirategies,

The System 15 currently invested nstocks (domestic and foreign), fixed imcome secunties (domestic
and foreign), real estate, privale equity, and hedge funds,

Trterest Rate Risk

[nterest rate nisk 15 the nsk that changes in interest rates wall adversely affect the fair value of an
imvestment, The following is a listing of the Syetem’s Oxed income investments (in thousandz) and
related maturity schedule (in vears) as of December 31, 2004:

Lass More
Investment ivpe Fair valac than 1 -8 e ] than 110

LLE, Trensury nobes ond bonds & IBA495 t il T.563 — 14,670

LLE, agercics T 2Ky i}, W58 1,153 2L 0KES —

Dipmestic coTporaie 200247 el el 105,772 02,5 7a ARETD

Inlematimal Coaporate = 145 =025 47,801 21X I56 4,160

Intemntienal governnent 127,100 4,345 51,5481 4.1 17,544
Al backed:

ChiCks JaAts -— — 1034 2139

Mirgage-backx 67,762 Bid o k14

Crlher J2855 — 27516 2,0u5 2,344

k) T14.1X) Al3T0 322250 L7968 165606

The System’s guidelines do not specifically address limits on matunities as a2 means of managing its
exposure o fair valve loszes arising from increasing inlerest rates. The manager of sach fxed
income portfolio is responsible for determining the maturity and commensurate retums of their
porifolio,

The System has incleded approximately 54,081,000 of ULS, Treasury notes in the above scheduls
that are clazsified as short-term investments on the statement of plan net asseis.

The collateralized momgage obligations (CMOs) held by the Svetem as of December 21, 2004 are
highly scnsitive to changes in interest rates.

1 (Comtinued)
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Credit Risk

The System allows investment managers to apply discretion under the “Prudent Merson™ rule.
Investments arg made, as a prodent person would be expected to act with discretion and intelligence,
to seek rezsonable income, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculative investments.

The System's fixed income investments as of December 31, 2004 were rated by Standard and Poor’s
andror an equivalent pational rating organization and the ratings are presented below (in thousands)
using the Standard and Poor's rating scale:

Fair e

Investment tvpe value AALA An A [H311 [H 3] [H OO0 ml_i
LIS, apenuios £ 76300 Th, 20 — = o s
Dromizsiic corpomie L i1, H57 15 di=] 152, I 27002 iz2a 1 1,179 2150
Intenmacional coop, q4a.145 27,348 1539 +.1a7 11965 0502 &5 AT Co]
ltereaismal pov't 127,750 B4,240 21178 1 086 I.151 ] [ 350

Aszrt-hacksl:

e 23 dER 15,013 - —_ — — — - 3.E52s
Monpags-hacked BT TAE z.2i] — - -- ik A0
Ol 31555 7, 1 ELT T 445 1451 = 2
5 ORIAIT 257,64% 55,132 140,605 42571 45 37 HA.557 1,174 |5 0655

"

In addicen w0 the above schedule, the Swvstem has approximately 528693 000 invesied
LS. government securities, which are not rated as they are explicitly guaranteed by the TS,
BONVERNITETL,

Concentration Risk

The Syzlem has no investments, at fair value, that exceed 5% of the System’s ner assets held in rrust
for pension benefits as of December 31, 2004,

The System adheres to the provizsions of MLG.L, ¢. 32, sec. 23(2) when managing concenlration risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely alffect the fair value of
an investment or a deposit. Similar to the investments in domestic equities, the Svatem emplovs or
ENCOUTAZES ils investment advisor to employ diversification, asset allocation, and quality sirategies,
Currency hedging is permitted for defensive purposes. Currency hedging shall be effected through
the use of forward currency contracts. At December 31, 2004, there were no open forward currency
CONIEALTS,

) {Continued)
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Rizsk of loss arises from changes in curmency exchuange rates. The System’s exposure to forcign
currency rizk 15 presented on the following table.

Currency Shart-term Fixedd income Equity Total

Anstralian dolla Ll 7,705 11,243 LE,905
Canadian dolla P2 5,532 4,302 Q840
Dranizh krone 1.524 5,263 £,797
Fura curvenay Gk 28327 113,505 202 204
Hong Kong dollar g 5,732 5,741
Tapanese ven 104 50,166 T1,326 127,594
helewican pesn 1086 —_ (IR
Mew Fealand dollar 3 1.111 LG 1,350
Morwegian krone 15371 2055 4320
Pound sterling KK 15,763 A0467 0318
Singapore dollar k 10,732 131 12081
Swedish kronas Qa1T 5727 17 Sl
Swiss fanc 124 ) 28.341 30 ESE
Intermational equity pooled

fumds (varnus cumencies) 458 — 273,556 274014

Total securities
subjesct o foreigm
currency risk |,245 |9 732 L3 1% 09 1RG0

Lintted States dollars {secuntics
held by international

INVESImEnE MANAgers) 15,847 X203 10,430 46,480
Total internaticnal
investment
securities 15,090 216,935 f3,624 B33,64%

Froperty Taxes

Feal and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. By law, all taxable
property must be azsessed at 100% of fuir cash value. Also by law, property taxes must be levied a1 least
30 days prior to their due date. Once levied, these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estumated
uncollectible balances. Property tax revenues have been recorded using the modified sccrual basis of
acoounting, described in nofe 2.

The City bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basiz following the January | assessment. The
due dates for those quarlerly tax billings are August 1, November 1, February |, and May |, Property laxes
that remain unpaid after the respective due dales are subject o penalties and interest charges.

Based on the City's experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in which they are
assessed, Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid occurs annually, On Tuly 27, all properties

4] (Coniinued)
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wilh unpaid fzcal vear 2004 properly faxes were liened. The City ultimately has the right @ foreclose on
all properties where the taxes remain unpaid.

Aostatewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2-1/27 limitz the amount of increaze in the
property fax levy inany fiscal vear, Generally, Proposition 2-12 limiis the total levy to an amount not
greater than 2-1/2% of the total assessed value of all raxable property within the City. Secondly, the tax
levy cannot increase by more than 2-1/2% of the prior year's levy plus the taxes on property newly added
o fhe 1ax rolls. Certain provizions of Proposiion 2-1/2 can be overridden by a Citv-wide referendum.

Keccivables

Recevables as of vear-end [or the government's individual major funds, nonmajor funds and internal
service fund, including the applicable allowanees for uncollectible accounts are as follows {in thousands):

Oither
Special Capital nonmijoer Internnl
General FeVERLE projecls Tunils service Total
Raxeivables:
Property Tas 5 R —_ — - 32
Ciher 1ases 145234 — -— - - 149,234
Inperpoversmcnial 343 6006 103,443 3,005 —_ 450, 154
Ciaher 3742 75439 — 336 154 107,671
Cimoes recoavables LS8T.528 17K, 952 3005 ER 154 36,754
Le=x alliwance fir
uncodlectibles {168, Bddy — —_ _— — 163 B4
Tees ional
receivables. 5 1RR4ERd | 78952 3,005 36 154 ST0NL]
_——— e——

fat  Long-Term Receivable

The City participates in the Commonwealth's school building assistance program, which is
administered by the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MEBA), The MSBA provides
financial azsistance (90% of wtal costs) o the Cite to build and/or rencvate schools. Az of June 30,
20005, under this program, the City was due funds wialing $5258.8 million.

42 (Continued)
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In the General Fund, the receivable iz offser by deferred revenue because the revenue 5 not eonsiderncd
available. The following 15 a schedule of the five-vear paydown az of June 30, 2005 (in thousands),
through 2000, and in five-yvear increments after thar:

Amnticipated

Fiscal vearis) revenue
200 by P12272
2007 15,2749
2008 15,163
20049 14,650
2010 14,407
200 1=2015 53,744
20062020 33,248
Tnial 3 ZAR.T63

(bl Notes Receivahle

Bection 108 is 1he loan goarantee provision of e Community Development Block Grant (CTDBRG)
program. Secction 108 provides communitics with a source of financing for economic development,
housing rehabilitation, public fucilites, and large-scale physical development projects. Housing and
Urhan Development (HUDY) provides grants o local governments, which in wm provides loans (o
developers. As of June 30, 2005, ander this program, the City determined that $75.4 million was
collectble.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are nod
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
FEVENUe recopmition in connection with resources that have been received, but not vel earned. At the end of
the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and uneamed revenue reported in the
sovernmental funds were as follows {1n thouzands):

Unavailable Unearnmed
Crelinguent property taxes receivable (general fund) 5 26,757 —
Crue from component units - 10,65
Section 108 recetvable 15430 —
School bullding assistance receivable Z5E.T63 .
Oiher 1,367
Total deferred/uncarned revenue for
governmental funds 3 364959 11,932
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(B} Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 was as follows (in thouzands):

Primary Govermment

Beginning Ending
halance fcreases Decrenses halance
Grovernmenial activities:
Capifal asseis nod being
depreciated:
Land b 14,4668 L, 40 - (it
Consiruchion in progress 507,540 TL227 {260,172) 319,601
Toval capital asscis not
heing depreciated 532012 13,627 {260,172) 333467
Captal assets baing depreciated:
Land improverments 25,021 54442 - THAGY
Buildings and impeovements 1024418 153378 (15) 1,177,761
Furniture and equiptient 1600075 15,541 {2,388) 176,628
Infrastructure 266,830 41112 — 08062
Total capital assets
being deprecioted L ATh 04 267,873 [2.423) 1,741.914
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 7454 B.107 2741
Buildings and improvemeants TR20xT 17,567 (3] s 54
Fumniture and equiprsent 125,079 20,076 (2355 142 8032
Infrasiructurs G (174 0158 A 103,212
Total accamulaced
depreciation IOLEARIA 47 888 (21,355) 1.4, 347
Fevnl capital pssets
being depreciated, net 457,630 215,985 {A&) 677,567
Covernmantal sctivities
capital assets, nel 5 47,662 295,612 {Elﬁﬂjd-['Ll 1,003,034
]
44 (Continued)
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Covernmental activilies:
Creneral govermmend
Human services
Public safety
Public works, including depreciation of seneral infrastruciure azscis
Property and development
Parks and receeation
Library
schoals
County

Total depreciation expense — governimental activilies

Interfund Receivable and Pavable Balances

9,247
463
B3B3
0,649
1,208
1,544
1,152
16,1015
135

47 288

Individual fund and discrete component unit receivable and pavable balances at June 30, 2005, are as

follows (in thouzands)

Interfund balances Receivable Payable
Creneral Y 20,6590 [,045
Special revenue 1,363 2,090
Convention Center — 18,
Internal service T —_
Balznees at June 30, 2005 5 23 R385 22635
= —

The purpose of the internal balances is to fund cash flows due o liming differences between receipis and

disbursements {1n thousands).

Discrete component unit balances EBeceivable Payable
Primuary sovernment:
General 5 10,065 B4
Hespital revenue bond 110,370
120,435 #a
Mzerefely presented component units:
TPL - I3
PIIC a4 [ 20417
a4 1200435
Balances at June 30, 2003 h 120,519 120,519

{Continwsd)
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Creneral Obliration Bonds

The anoual debt zervice requirements of the Ciiy's geperal obligaton governmental bonds oulstanding as
of June 20, 2005, are as follows (in thousands):

Frincipal Interest Total
Year ending June 30

2000 3 6,563 37466 114,031
2007 76,0435 34,851 10,896
2005 71,2035 31,577 02,782
0o TRk 28.234 ]
010 G435 25,297 o732
011-2015 203,295 B 2R HMT.578
2016-2020 | SEA4235 32570 R
2021-2025 Sh040 5.507 nl. 147

5 H35.650 279,785 1,1 15475

On Febmary 1. 2005, the City issued 31278 million of general obligation and refunding bonds,
2750 million for varicus municipal purposes, and 3328 million for the purpose of refunding certain
outstanding gencral obligation bonds of the City, The proceeds of 532.8 million were used to refund
356.9 million of the City’s gencral obligation bonds outstanding. Interest on the bond is payable
semiannually each January 1, and Julv 1, unil matority in Gecal 2025 and 2018, respectively. The cash
flow difference and economic gain (the differcnce between the present values of the debt service payments
on old and new debt) obtained rom this refunding were 540 million and £3.1 million, respectively.

Nee Ohligation Db

The City has outstanding industrial, commercial, and housing development bonds pavable solely from
revenes of he respective enterprises that do nol constitute an indebtedness of the City and are not a
charge against its general credit, This aggregate amount iz immaterial 1o the financial stalements,

The City 15 subject to a dual general debt limat: the normal debt limit and the double debt limae, Sweh limits
are equal to 3% and 10%, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as last equalieed by
the State Deparment of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal debr limit withouwt state
approval. Awuthorizations under the double debt [imit, however, require the approval of the
Commaonwealth’s Emergency Finance Board, Additionally, there are many calegones of general obligation
debt which are exempt from the debit limat but are subject to other limitations.

As ool Jume 30, 2005, the Ciry may 1zsue 328 billion of additional peneral obligation debt under the debt
lirnis. Cieneral n::uh]:iga'rinn debt of 54198 million, subject to the debt limit, and 5165.2 million, exempt from
the debt limat, 15 suithorieed but umissued as of June 30, 2005,

Motes Payable and Ciher Long-Term Oblizations

At June 30, 2005, the City had bond anticipation notes (BANz) and various ather notes putstanding totaling
E14%.6 million.

449 (Continued)
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The anoual debr of the Ciy's notes payvable as of June 20, 2005, 15 as follows:

Principal Inlerest Total
Year ending June 30

2004 b 90256 5414 [0 670
2007 2,296 2,447 4,743
2008 3,799 2,355 6,154
2009 2 R0g 2.207 016
2010 2 676 2 058 4,764
200 1-2015 28518 7,329 36,077
20062020 K345 | i 10,009
2021-2025 L5904 250 2154

3 [ 49 603 23084 173,587

In prior years, the City issued two BANS totaling $%6 million te fund various school projects that are duc
in fiscal 2006. The City is expected to receive a lump-sum payment from the MSBA 1o pay down the
BANs in fiscal vear 2006; accordingly, they have been classified as current long-term obligations.

In fizcal wear 2003, the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT) refinanced its
outstanding debt, which resulted in debt service savings passed through to the City via the MWPAT naote.
The lean provides fonding for the closure and postelosure care costs relating to the City’s Gardner Sireet
Landfill. Proceeds are received on a reimbursement basis from MWPAT as expenditures are incurred by
the City,

Proprietary Fund Obligations

The annual debt service requirements of the City's special obligation bonds and Bosten City Hospital,
Series B, revenue bonds, outstanding az of June 30, 2003 are as follows {in thousands):

Principal Interest Turtal
Year ending June 30k

2006 5 9220 10,188 19,408
2007 G565 9843 | 9408
2008 G920 0451 19,371
2009 I260 00 19,360
2000 L a15 B,.546 19,361
2001-2015 BOa75 35,698 05673
ZOE 62020 65,285 LV RATHY B3.204
202 1-2025 32475 5574 41,3449
2026=-2030 15,375 1,163 I5,538

£ 223,990 112,781 326971

The revenue refunding honds of the Boston City Hospital (BCH) do net constitute general ohligations of
the City and the annual debt service of these bonds has been assumed by the Boston Public Health

S0 (Continued)
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Commission. The Bostan Public Healih Commission expects o meet itz obligation on the bonds through
application of a portion of the rent pavable to the Boston Public Health Commission by the Boston Medical
Center Corpocation (BMC) for its leaze of the former Boston City Hospital, Under cerlan cireumstances,
including a default by BMC under the lease, City revenues may be required to satisfy the debi service
requirements on the Seriez B bonds.

The Boston Public Health Commizsion has assumed responsibility for paying o the Cily, an amount squal
o current debt service on all outstanding genceal obligation bonds of the Ciry issued for public bealth and
hospital purposes, which amounted to 599 million at June 30, 2005,

Dhefeased Dol

The following ransacuons met the requirements of an in-substance defeasance:

* O April 11, 2000, the Ciry issued 5320 million in geperal obligation refunding bonds o advance
refund $49.9 million of 1991, 1994, and 1995 Scries Bonds,

# In Awpust 2002, B127.8 million of bonds were issued o refund the Boston City Hospital, Senes B
Honds dated Junc 1, 1993,

* On Movember 15, 2002, the Ciy issued 5430 million of general obligation refunding bonds for the
purpose of refunding $45.1 million of outstanding general obligation bonds of the City, 2002
Senes O,

. In Febroary 2004, the City issued $100.9 million of genceal obligation refunding bonds, of which
2650 millon were seneral obligation and %239 mallion was used o advance refund 237.7 million of

954, 1995, 1990, and [998 Series Bonds,

. In February 2005, the City issued $127.8 million of gencral obligation refunding bonds, of which
ET5.0 million were general obligation and 532.8 millon was used o advance refund 3389 million of
1984, 1998, and 2000 Sencs Bonds.

The principal amount of debt refunded through in-substance defeasance ransactions and still ontstanding
at June 30, 2005 was approximately B160.0 million

31 (Cromtanued)
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Bioes 1o Basic Financial Slatements
June 30, 205

The City haz entered inte various capital leaze agreementz for equipment acquisition, Pavmenis under theze
agrecments arc suhject to annual appropriation and, by statute, are not included in the City's debt limit
caleulations, Activity in capital lease agreements duning Gzcal year 2005 wos as follows (o thouzands):

Dutstanding,

beginning Outstanding,

Trate of issuance of vear Additions Redoctions end of vear
Julv 21, 2(K)2 5 Hils — GBS —
Diecember 200, 2002 71149 — 3626 3,203
Apnl 21, 2004 4,784 — 2,182 Ze04
Movember 5, 2004 = 1178 912 0,266
harch 11, 20035 — 1,050 — 1050
5 1260 5228 7415 13,413

eSS

Assets poquired under capital leases are imcluded 1o equipment under capital assels,

Fumure minimum payments under capital leases and installment sales as of June 30, 2005 arc as follows (in

thousands):

2004
2007
2008
2004
2010
2011
2012

Total mimimum lease pavments

Less amount representing intergsi

Total minimum principel lease paymenis

Less current portion

Long-term poriion

The City's commitment under operabiing leases 15 not significant.

5,398
4,736
2,237
936
al6
243
1200

14 (EG
73

13,413

5073

., 340
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CITY OF BOSTON, MARSSACHUSETTS
Motes to Basic Financial Statements

Juae 30, 2005

Betirement Plans

frl

(b}

Plan Deseription

The City contnbutes to the State-Boston Retirement Svstem (the System), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined bencfit pension plan, The System provides retirement, disability and
death benefits w plan members and beneficianes of the following government units:

{11 Cuiey of Boston

121 Boston BEedevelopment Authority
{3)  Boston Housing Auilworicy

{41 Boston Water & Sewer Commission
(51 Boston Public Health Commission
() Eheridl of Suffolk County

Chapter 32 of the ML assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan to the
slate legislature,

The System iz adminiziered by a five-person Boeard of Betirement consisting of the City Auditor,
who serves as a member ex officio, two members who are elected by the participants, in or retired
from the service of the Svstem, o fourth member appointed by the Mavor, and a fifih member chosen
by the other members,

The City alto participates in the Boston Retirement System (BRS) and made benefit payvments of
approximately 36.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2005, The number of BRE plan participants
was frozen in 1946, The financial statementz of BRS are combined with the Svstem’s; however,
dizclosures for BRES are not material and, thus, are not presented separately,

Basils of Accouniing

The System’s financial statements are prepared wsing the agerual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Emplover contributions
to the plan are recognized when due and the employver has made a formel commitment to provide the
contnbutions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and pavable in accordance with the
terms of each plan,

[nvestmenis of the Svstem are stated az follows:

(a}  Bonds are stated at quotsd market value.

{b)  Equity securities are stated at quoted market value.

{} Real estate funds are stated at appraised valve or partner’s account value, whichever is more
readily determinakble,

(d) Venturc capital funds are stated at contributed cost or fair market value, whichever is more
readily determinable.

() International investments are stated at quoted market value and are included in equities and
fixed income categories.

(0 Cashoiz sated ol carmving amount which is reconciled book balance,

i
Tad
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CITY OF BOSTOMN, MASSACHUSETTS
Mates to Baszie Financial Statements

June 30, 2005

Menihorshin

Membership in the Svstem consisted of the following at December 31, 2004, the date af the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving henefits 13,878
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits 10,542
Active plan members 20,882

Total membership 45,202
Total number of participating employvers £
Contrifutfons

Plan members are required to contribute to the Svstem. Depending on their emplovment dale, active
members musl contribute a range of 3% - 9% of their regular gross compensation. Members hired
after Docember 31, 1978 mmst contribute an additional 2% of regular compenzation in excess of
§30.000. Participating employers are required to pay into the Svatem their share of the remaining
system-wide actuarially detérmined contribution, which is apportioned among the employers hased
on active covered payroll, The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the Commonwealth) reimburses
the City for benefits paid to school teachers. The Commonwealth also reimbursed the System for a
portion of benefit pavments for cost of living increases granled before July 1, 1998, The
contributions of plan members and the participating employers are governed by Chapler 32 of the
MGL. The Civ'z required and actual contributions to the System for the vears cnded June 30, 2005,
200 and 2003 were 5147 million, $137 million, and $134 million, or $71 million, $78 million, and
§26 million, net of teachers” retirement, respectively.

During the fall of 1997, the System's Retirement Board, the City Council, and the Mayor approved
the option for local funding of cost of living adjustments, Az a resull, a locally funded cost of living
adjustment of 3.0% on the first $12,000 of a retiree’s annual payment was awarded in fiscal vear
2002 and fiscal vear 2001, Theze cost of living adjustmentiz will be awarded by the Refirement Board
each wear, except in vears in which the Retirement Board defermines that such an adjusiment would
substantially impair the funding schedule.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Mates (o0 Basic Financial Statementz
June 20, 2005

Legally Required Reserve Accounts

The balances in the System’s legally required reserves (on the statutory basis of accounting) at
December 31, 2004 are as follows (1 thousands):

Description Amoant Purpose

Annuity savings fund 5 1,104,962 Active members' contribution balance

Amnuity reserve fund 370,980 Rctired members” contribuiion account

bilitary service credit 45 hembers” contribition account while on military
fcave

Pension reserve fund 1,433,208 Amounts appropriated to fund fatore retiremeant
henefits

Penzion fund 638,546 Remaining net assets

b 1547840

Adl rezerve accountz are lunded ot levels required by State siatute.

Securities Lending

The Public Emplovment Retirement Administration Commission of Massachusetis (PERAC) has
1asued supplemental regulations that permit the System to engage in securnities lending transactions.
These transactions are conducted by the System’s custodian, which lends certain securities owned by
the System to other broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement. The System and
the horroeavers maintain the right 1o lemminate all securities lending ransactions on demand.

Al the System’s direction, the custodian lends the Svatem's securities and receives cash {(including
both United States and foreign currency), United States government sccurities, sovereign debt of
foreign countries, and irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. The custodian does not have the
ability 1o pledge or sell collateral unless the bomrower defaults, Barrowers are reguired to deliver
cash collateral in amounts egual 1o not less than 100% of the market value of the loaned securities,

The System doez not impose any restrictions on the amount of securities lent on its behalf by the
custodian. There were no failures by any borrowers to retum loaned securities or pav distributions
thereon, and there were no losses from a default of the borrowers or the custodian for the vears ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. The cash collateral received by the custodian on each loan was
invested, together with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective
investment pool. The relationship berween the average matunties of the investment pool and loans
wis affected by the maturities of the loans made by other plans that invested cash collateral in the
collective investment pool, which the System could not determine. At December 21, 2004 and 2003,
the System had no eredit risk exposure 10 borrowers because the amounts the System owed the
borrowers exceeded the amounts owed to the System. Borrower rebates and fees paid to the
custodian during the vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were 2.7 million and 52.2 million,
respeclively.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Moles 1o Basie Finencial Statements

June 30, 2005

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the fairr value of sccunties loancd by the Swvztem amounted to
2150 mullion and 5217.2 million, respectively, against which was held collateral of 52227 million
and 32329 million, respectively, as follows (in thouzands):

= December 31
2004 2003
Short-term collateral investment pool b 2lo 122 205,482
Moncash collaters) 3,519 18,587
Toral k3 222 66H 225 HTh

(el Comprifmenis

Al December 21, 2004, the System had confrociual commitmenis oo provide approximately
E270 million of additional funding 10 venture capital funds,

(ther Postemplovment Benefit Disclosures

[n addition o the pension benefiis deseribed i note 11, the Ciy provides pestemployment health care and
life insurance benefits, in accordance with state statufe and City ordinance, o participaling refirees,
Approcimately 12,600 retrees mest the eligbility reguirements as put forth in Chapter 228 of MGL. The
Ciy paye T30 ol Blee Crose/Bloe Shield of Maszachuzettzs (BC/BE) premivms and 90%: of HMO
premiums for medical and hospitalization incurred by retirees and their dependents. The City also pays
Ta% of BOEBS Medicare premiums for sach Medicare eligible refiree. The City provides for 50% of the
premivme for 55,000 of life insurance for each eligible retives,

Expenditures of approximately $76.6 million for health care and life insurance benefits for retinees are
aceounted for on o pav-gs-vou-zo bazis in hscal vear 2005,

Transfers

Transfers and their purposes during the vear ended June 20, 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

Proprietary
Governmental funds fuumd
Special Other Convention
{reneral revenue _governmental center
Primary government:

Excess hotel/motel excise faxes % 13,000 — — (18000
Cemetery fees/fund sppropriation 2,029 - (2,025 —_
Parking meter fees/fund

approprialion 3,500 (3,500

Tioral 3 23,524 {3,300 (2,029] (18,0
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Motes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 205

(141 Excess of Expenditures over Budgzets

The City had expenditures in excess of their budgeted amounts Tor the vear ended June 30, 2005 in the

following categores {in thouzands):

Public safery:
Palice Department 3
Fire Department

Public works:
Soow remaovial

Judgments and claims;
Execution of courts

CHber emplovee benefis:
Worker's compensation fund

tate and disiricl assessments;
School choice

9,670
11,162

14.270
7,384
1,716

25

44,2306

The excess expenditures repomed above are allowed under the budgetary laws governing the City,

(15) FPublic Health System

Effective Julv 1, 1996, the Cirv’s Department of Health and Hospitals and Trustee: of Health and
Hospitals, were abolished. Substantially all their assets and liabilitics, including title 1o the City’s twao
hospatals, Boston City Hospiutal (BCH) and Boston Specialty and Fehabilitation Hospital (BSEH]), were

transferred to and assumed by the Bosten Public Health Commission {PHC).

Also effective July 1, 1996, the operations of BCH and BSRH were consolidated with the aperations of the
Boston University Medical Center under the licensure and control of the Boston Medical Center

Comporation (BMC).

The PHC receives the majority of 12 funding from Federal and state grants, lease agreements with BMC
and & City appropriation, During fiscal year 2005, the City approprated 56006 million e the PHC. As
described below, the PHC uses the appropriation to pay debt service on certain general ohligation bonds
and base aszistance granl payments o BMC, The remaimder of the appropriation 5 used for adnminizirative
purposes and 1o support the various public healih programs ren by the PHC, The City has budgeted

2613 million for the PHC for fiscal yvear 2006,

Pre from PHCEBMOC

O July 1, 1996, in connection with the consolidation ransaction described abowe, the PHC assumed a
habiliey of 21498 million for a morzage note due o the City, In August 2002, this note was refinanced
such that the siream of pavments made by the PHC oo ke new note will be used o pay the outstanding
balance of $122.% million of the City's Special Obligation Refunding Bonds dated August 2002, The PHC
receives funding for the note payments from the BMC under a lease agreement whereby the BMC leases
portions of the former BCH for an initial pericd of 30 years, Rental payinents received under this leass are
equal to the debt service costs on the new note and on all City general obligation bonds allocable to BCH.
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These general obligation bomds were iszued by the City between December 1987 and October 1995 and
total $9.9 million at June 30, 2005. These bonds pertain to the property and operations of the BCH
Coampusz, South Block Campus, BEEH Cempus, Emerzency Medical Scrvices Operations, and the Long
Izland Campus,

In addition, the PHC and BMC are alzo responsible for reimburging the Citv for health insurance,
equipment lease peyvments, workers” compensation, and other miscellaneous expenses patd for by the City.

FPaymienis fo BMTC

PHC 15 obligated to make future base assistance grant payments o BMC of $10.8 million each vear
through Gscal vear 2019,

Risk Management

The City is self insured for gencral liability, property, and casualty {exeept for hoiler and machinery losses
up o 325 million), worker inury, unemplovment, and certain emploves health claims. The Ciiy's
Corporation Counsel defends the City in any lawsuits that anse from the normal course of operations, with
exposure limited by o state tort cap under Chapter 238 of the MGL. Except for certain health care cosis
described below, judgments and claims are charged (o he general fund.

The City’s health insurance program, administered by the Health Insurance and Benefits Division, a
program within Human Eesources, provides coverage to the City's employvees and retirees through a
numbher of Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO) and Blue Cress/Blue Shield of Massachusens
{BC/BE). Costs to the City for the HMOs, of which 10% is paid by emplovees, are accounted for in the
peneral fund and are capped at a delined premoum payment per employes.

BC/BS acts as a third-party agent for the City in the payment of the various claim plans used by the City,
Costs incurred for the operation of the BC/BS plans, of which 23% is paid by employecs, are accounted for
in g separale health insurance inferpal gervice Tund.

The City has implemented a comprehensive risk financing strategy that includes establishing a catastrophic
nsk reserve, currently with a 510 million balance available for future losses. The City has alzso improved
syatems for maximizing fhe receipt of Federal dizaster funds. On Awvgust 2B, 2004, the Cily's property
insurance policy went into effect — a one-vear, all-risk catastrophic policy covering all Cirv property assets
up o 330 million, after a 520 million retention. Any botler and machinery-related propery loss 15
additionally inswred, after a 230,000 deductible, for vp 1o 52,3 million,

55 (Continued)



CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Motes 10 Basie Finencial Statements

June 30, 2005

The City has established a liability based on historical trends of previous vears and attomey’s estimates of
pending matters and lawsuils in which the City 15 imvolved, Changes in the self-insurance lisbility for the

fiscal vears ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 are az follows (in thousandz);

Health and life claims, beginning of vear

Incurred claims

Fayments of claims attributable 1o events of both the

current and prior fiscal years:
Health and life

Health and hife claims, end of wear

Judgments and claims, beginning of vear

Inewrred claims

Payments of claims atirbotable o events of both the current

and prior fiscal vears:
Workers” compensation

Unemployment compensation

Coourl judgments

Judgments and claims, end of wvear

Internal service fund

2HIA 20Hd
6,114 7325
83,035 74,515
(82.684) (75.726)
6,463 6,114

Government-wide statements

25 204
25 468 E L
48 77 21273
(18,708) (16.646)
{3.164) {6,605)
{6.625) {3.170)
45,748 25468

The lizbilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred ¢laims represent the total of
a provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the priar

fizcal vears,

There are numerous pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City aftornevs
eatimmate that. the potential claims againsl the Ciy oot recondsd im0 the accompanying bazsic financial
statemnents resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
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June A0, 200k

(171 Dhiserciely Presented Component Units

The following presents condensed financial swatements for each of the discretely prezented component

umniis:
Condensed Smtement of el Assels
Jun: 30, 204E5
{la hicusands)
PEHC BHA TT'L EDC Taotal
Asars:
Curem st
Lash and isvesisnenls k. = dTh IR 4, adn WA Idd 771
Cazh nnd isvesmmiencs hebd
Ty trosice - - - 17 544 17844
Kegstvahlbes, e
Crther A AL 15060 4,132 17,974 TE0E3
Ciflier assicls LS, - 2A25 00 15210
e fron HME e (] 1,302
Dz from primary
pavernmgnl Ha — — — Ha
Talal cumend assets 51 4R 42442 &2, 703 S0U61E J0E 265
SNCHTREN] Rses:
Moies receivable 4,157 79790 - - 23957
Enlier asscls o { e 32 =T A 141,023
Capizal asseis:
Momdbepricialds 16.2HI 3475 — I 430 21,1480
Depreciahle TRAN 1571 1,527 25410 16 506
Total mnumenl
ERAELS 137510 LT AR 1,600 27 M TRL 632
Tokal assits 15401, 108 | 35 5928 32,303 TT 560 H42 AT
Liznilitizs
Clurrin] Babalives
Warranes and aoooisns
panable 9530 1548 1,450 R 17,620
A Hakvilives:
Crher 162 1503 2663
Crarrent porfion of lung-
1ot b and lesses 218 " 12274 12,452
[RITER-SRELS D 145,268 - - 14,268
Do B0 promary govcrament 130217 — 14 — 120,435
Diefesrred revenue 1154 33402 549 T.111 44,71
Tatal cuirenl
liabilitpas 149,706 15550 2009 1653 214,156
Mincwmenl Bakahises
[Mie in mere tham ooe year 115,x20 439 11,243 157011
Oither pomcurment lighilities 4015 — — 1,140+ 5105
I'minl nencurmeant
Iralsalities =+ M5 115,329 439 15357 132,120
Toial Hakdlities 155 &l 150,870 258 40178 LR
Pag assElE
Invested in capital asseis, net
of elaied deby 21,308 3,574 (e 126032 38572
Pesaricred 55,289 58,268
Linrestnicted 15.08% 547 2458 15 RBE 38,00
Toiml net nssens 5 1n, 367 LR{EL] R 28400 155,741
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Basic Financial Statcments

Jumne 30, 2005

Comdensed Siatement of Revermes, Expenses, and Changes in Net Asssis

Year ended June 340, 2005

{In thsousands)
PHC BHA TPL EC Tudal
Expenses g 114915 10814 1 3505 54,177 182875
Program revenues;
Charges for scrviocs — 11,240 Lo 14,354 570
COpemating prants ansd
contrbutions 1025069 A4, (=5 11.015] 17,316 115,361
Cagpisal pramis and contrikalions 1284 - — — 1.28%
Tatal program
TEVETIES: 104, 108 15,331 12,021 31,670 165,220
Pt (empenses]
TEVETILGS THLTIT [4,557) {1544} (2,507 {13655
Clenens] revenues
Iervesiment issome 2482 24 3544 Lis T.240
Mliscellaneous inocome | 20189 4,583 |.TES 18457
Tatzl generl
TEYETILGS 14.571 4 1051 55404 1,780 25,708
Chemge m nel assels 3,554 244 1.70%}F 153 .51
Metl assels — beginming of year 32,543 #8035 111 2237 1 X ho
Frior pericd adjusime — — 34 -— EL |
Ml msels — end ol yEIr & 36,087 LR ], 545 28490 135.781

special Items

{ur)

[h

Chawge in Legisiation

In July 2004, & change in State legislation, outside of the City’s control, resulted in the recognition of
g receivable from the Mazsachusetis School Buillding Authonty (MSBA)Y related to the school
building aszistance program. Although the receivable of 32588 million at June 20, 2005 increazes
unrestricted net asscts, amounts w be rcceived represent reimburzements for prior school
construction costs and coincide with the City's future debl service poyments. In fzcal 20068, the City
expects (o receive 51123 million which will be used 10 repay related debt service,

Changes in Accounting Extimares

In fiscal 2003, the Ciy's estimate of the collectibility of certain construction, developer, and other
loans receivables, wotaling 5269 million, changed, resulting in an increasze in net asserz of ihe
governmental activities at June 30, 2005 of approcimately $75.4 million. At June 30, 2003, a portion
of thiz increaze (3294 million} iz included in restmcted nel sssels as it will be used for program
purposes, while the remainder is expected to be used to repay outstanding debt of $46.1 million.
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CITY OF BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information
i Unaudiied)

(Dallar amounts m theosands)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Sehedule [

Actunrinl UAAL nsa
Actanrial Actanrial acerueil Unfumded Fanded pereeniage of
valuation value of Habdlny Aal{UAAL) ratlo Covered covered payeall
dEle assels (1) LAALY Th) Th -l fail) paveall {e) [h-a)'el
FED1AE 3T 5664 TRE 2077170 G3.3% 5 LIISSEY 136.3%
R 3334814 5420542 036028 624 LaT 492 10T
oLl 3,204,592 5121319 19146426 2.5 10,770 1743
CLDLAz2 5370718 1,794,130 LA24 414 0.3 L0E2A20 1353
R 3200692 4,256 714 1045022 75.5 Go0, 125 1055
IHE] 2415 95% 4,101 28 11214350 T2 G2, 107 1129
Sehedule of Employvers” Contributions
Ammaal
reqquired Tercentnge
contribution coniribuced
Wear ended December 31z
X 3 T (0 10
L RES 157 04 (LN
20032 1535382 LK
2031 146,352 100
PLLLY] 145,541 L0
1999 142 80 Lo

Maotes to Schedules

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method
Arnortization method
Bemaining amortization period
Agser valuation method

Aetuarial assumpticns:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases

Intlation rate

Cost-of-living odjustments

Jamuary 1, 2005

Entry age normal cost

Payment increase at 4.5% per year

1% years remaining as of Tanuary 1, 2004

Sum of actuarial value at the beginning of the wear, conributions and
investment carnings based on the actuarial interest assumption less bencfic
paymenis and operating expenses plus 20% of market value ot the end of
the wvear in excess of tat sum, ples additnonal adjusument toward marker
value as mecessary so that final actuarial walue is within 20% of market
value, A similar Formula wsed for negative adjustment foward markes

value if actuarial value excecds market value.

B.0%
5.0%
4.5%
3.0% on first 312,000 of retirement income

See accompanving independent awditors’ repor.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

GENERAL FUND

The general fund is the operating fund of the City. It is used 1o account for all revenues, expenditures
and other linancial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds,

63



City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit A-1

GEMERAL FUND
Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2005 and 2004
{in thousands)

ASEETS
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e i
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o e e ey N s
B L T e e e
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Warrants and accounts payable,, ... e
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Feserved for:
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Dresignated for subsequent vear expendiiures, .o
L R TR e e e e s e e
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—

T T e ey

2005

aeede 3

32 666
73,855
343,685
31,742
75,37

GO G3E

Aip, i)
G5,570
TTAa14
34,561
79,64

357,228

297,386

(16,9509
(75,379
{56,179
{20,336)

(28,0017
(79,6417
(54,6113
(23371

{168,544)

(185,624)

388,484
20,690
10,065

111,762
25,201
12,285

333
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit A<

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Statememils of Reveniss, Expenditures nnd Changes in Fund Balanos
Yeara Ended June 30, 2008 and 2004
(in heusands)

2005 2004

REVEMNUES:
Lisczal:
Fezal and personnl property taxes...... Sppmipmyy i iim s s TS ORI 5 1,138,254 5 1 (&2 574
Excises. ........ e e e G300 £5,354
Paymnends in licw ol 1ames. i 42 208 42373
ol s B e R TR R R g b S b T G5, 250 ﬁﬁ‘ﬁd'l
I el AN . LR S e ek 17970 5253
L DT e O T e ol v 1 7 e ' s i et o s 33401 33,900
Deparimental and other i kT / LA 45 556
Todnl [ocal TeVEnEEE. e s 1,451,823 1,364 352
Inlergovemmental:
11 T ) 1] 44, 508 A3 RAG
Tatal inlergovemmmenial revennss, .o, R : A60, 208 430810
B T L e s 11z 1,524,158
EXPENDITURES:
Crrent;
LR AL T TR L4 1 v hrm e P s et ) B 14 57471 30061
Human servie s e e e e S 23,821 22,642
S R T s Kk o o R S B e o 457,541 1061 854
i I T R i ol o 14 bt s P T e 1015, 749 87,045
Pioperty s sl T L e 29,836 31,028
Prarks nngl recnzation 15,708 11,204
Litirary e e e P P R M 27,594 24 089
T e S G739 f56,240]
Public Health Programs. ..., [ 58,702
Judgivents and claims. G20 (35443
B T T B ed v i s s o v e et g A AN 87 934
Oilher employee benediis... s isie i, 142,721 120,937
Scate and disiese] ASSERETIETILS. —..c..ceoceomv s emsiemss s e i v . 115,894 110,061
COpilnl OIS i s s simsn s riiaiie 2083 33
[ T T s o bt e o o L R 1 115, 76% 120,938
e e T e s e e o et B e 1,805.421 1758211
Excees of revenwes over expendlires. .. : 17300 65,377
OTHER FINANCING 20URCES (USES):
Payrnenis to refanded Bsonds ecrow agenl.. o {1,025% [(311)
T T I o T D 13520 17,000
Total oibir financing SOURCES (55T e e aises 32 504 15 ARD
et change in fnd bubEnCea . e s i s e s seimes 39,804 1,066
Fundd balones - bBeginning. ... Fr e e T R FTLEM 491,354
Puaned balaaues - sl o o i e SONL Glio2e % 573220
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than
debt service, trust funds or capital projects that are legally restricted for specific purposes. This fund
accounts for a number of federal and state grants administered by the City’s individual departments.
This fund provides additional support to department programs and also accounts for money that has
been set aside, generally by state statute, that may be used to support the City’s general fund operations.

This fund 1s directly linked to a specific activity and is available without further City Council
Appropriation.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit B-1

SPECIAL REVEMNUE FIINT»
Comparative Balance Sheets
Jung 30, 2005 and 2004
{in thousands)

2004

ASSETS

JBECE a1 | e Y (R P LI e B
Receivables (net)h:
byl Tl T e B A R e
Drepartrmenlal and GHHET. i i s

123,608

103,393
75,430

3

116,283

116216

Todal recsivabdes: e oy

178,932

116,216

e irorm other- s 5 s snis i s e

1,363

1,499
1

oAl Ra gy g st ety e L s L S e

303,903

3

233,999

LIARILITIES

]

Warrants and accounts payable. . e
Accrued liabilities:
Payrodl and reloted costs.. o cececsceceeeens
Lreposits amd odlver .ol s L
Dase toother TEnds., ...

14,752

1,534
28,162
75,430

2,690

32,532

34,401

£.201

Totalliabilities s e L i i

122,577

75,134

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for;
Unreserved:
LU T g Tk U e

51,000

13,236

34,738

124,137

Total fund balance.......cemmenien

181,326

158 265

Tetal hakilities and fund balanee. oo %

303,903

233,999
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City of Boston, Massach us__etts

Comparative Statements of Bevenues, Expendifures, anad Changes in Fund Balance

Exhibit B-2
SPECIAL REVENLIE FUND

Yeurs Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004
{in thousands)

REVENLES:

o1 [T P S

[AVEStTIETE IOCOMIE, cc.vcraries ieianiminess et imssramssmsmassbabsensmsems smsanransene
LipG RS S A e s S s S L L e e
Lot A O oo vt S e
Intergovernmental ... e s

Tl TR E IR e S e e e

EXFENDITURES:

Current operations;

LB TaT oy | BT 1171 2 1] P e e A e T
o L1001 1 iy e R e oy e i A e el P O el
3 Tl a) EEE o o M M e L, Ty S

Public works...............

Eroper - dara ol

Parks and fecredtinm e s

2= T, ] e,

Public bealth pIograme. .o memremrenes
L 0T T T b L R B e e
AR T T 1 ) e e e e e e e i o

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures.. ...,

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Long-term debt and capital leases ssued. i
Payments to refunded bonds escrowr agent...oooiveneiieoeens
Premiums on long-term debb i350ecl. . ovrssvreerse s rmrerserssees

Translhers ot ... e,

Toaal other MNANCINEG SOUPCES. 1w
et chanpe i fund balances. o

Fand- balance — epinmime o sl e i
Frind balamee— rodine s idcm s i oo e e

2005

2004

17 %
282
T4
32,882
312,331

]

175

il
26,374
356,955

185,580

383,193

12,548
86T
24,338
2.71%
57154
1,001
3,579
134, 002
1,710
101,832
B05
3875

3,175
9,337
21,052
2806

&6, 594
1,230
5400
124,356
26
102,044
1,591
5,054

305233

358,519

20251

1,381
(6,180
10,405
(3,500)

24,674

15,000
(4,096)
11,775

2110

22,679

22461

158,865

47,353

111,512

151,326 §

158,865

T4
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

This fund 15 used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities, Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of general obligation
bonds and from federal and state grants. The use of a capital projects fund is especially common for
major capital acquisition or construction activities financed through borrowings or contributions.
Unless there is a legal requirement to use a capital projects fund, the use of the capital projects fund

type is permitted rather than required.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit C-1

CAPITAL PROJJECTS FUND
Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2005 and 2004
{1in thousands)

2005 2004
ASSETSE
Cash and investments. ..o 5 o0 5 22,604
Cash and investments held by trustees........... 2,429 3,004
Intergovernmental receivables.......ieeenie. 3,005 -
AR 3 37344 % 85,788
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable.................. § 3493 & 4,360
Accrued liabilities:
Deposits and other: ..o st mas i 15219 23,951
Totaliliabilifes.. o e 18,712 30,511
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for:
AT L] i1 L b e e s e e R 24,471 20521
Future appropriations. . ... s 43,724 50,374
Unreserved;
Lindesignated {deficit)..........iooi i (109,563} (45,918)
‘Fotal:fund balares s i i 18,632 55,277
Total liabilities and fund balance............ ) 37344 % 85,788
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City of Boston, Massach usetts_k

Exhilit C-2

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUMND
Comparative Satements of Bovenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended June 20, 2005 and 2004
{in thousancs)

2005 Pl 15

REVENULES:
Deparimcnial and oiber............ DR Lt 3,065 5 1985
TR T T B o i v et it ] 10317
T HD FEV TV ) o i i e e L e 11,865 15902

EXPENDITURES:
A B IR v e e o i it ] e o AT 132,563

Tatal expenditures........ P B Ve G T T e e s e A : B7.474 132,562

Excees {delicieney) of revenwes over cxpem@Biflres. .o (76, 109 {1 13.660)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LUSES):
Long=termm debt ond capital leases B50ed e 136,005 147 986
Paymenis to refunded bomds esemmw Smenl. e {5906, 5307 (358109

Tobtal siher fiNANCME SOUTEEE ra i st s 39,464 112,167

et change in MR DEBRIMGES wisaie s e s s sasas i [36,645] (1,293

FunE: balaiog = DO iw: i odsie stk e o s S0 55,277 56,770

Pund: balonee: = end Mg . e e & e e 61 Gt b i s . o9 15,632 & 23,277
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City of Boston, Magfs_av;mfsétts

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Other Governmental Funds are those funds that are not defined as major funds.

Permanent Fund, established by GASE Statement No, 34, the fund is used to report resources that are
legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that
support the reporting government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

The permanent fund is compesed of the following pools:

Poolitl is vsed for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the
erection and maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Poolf2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment and the aid of needy
students.
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City of Boston, Massachusetts
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City of Boston, Massachusetts
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City of Ec':-sdt;:rn, Massachusetts

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Service Fund accounts for the City's self insurance for health benefits provided by Blue
Cross/Blue Shield for City employees, their dependents and retirees. The Internal Service Fund is
meluded in the governmental activities columns in the government-wide statements,

an



City of Boston, Massachusetts

— e

Exhibit E-1

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statements of Net Assets
June 20, 2005 and 2004
{1n thousands)

2005 2004
ASSETS
Cash and N vestments:.. ... e aie e ke nsataiatis . 4B 30,555 ¢ 19,702
Receivablessmet g e s e 154 204
Due fromother fmds. .o i iieienee SEZ (45
Due from component Units. ...t u 41
B p et ] L i 1,873 1,580
| T 1 Al ol o 5 33,164 22,663
LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable.........oe. A 39 17
ACeTOEd AR e e G405 6,114
Jotalhghaliess o, 304 6,131
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted..........ueiie. . 26,660 16,532
Jrotalimetassets L aln L SRS R 26,600 16,532
et

kH1



City of Bosto n, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-2

INTERMNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands)

2= 2004

BEEVEMLIES:

Emplover contribulions._ ... eermisesimmsaesmmsissmess B ol Bl 8 G1 4006
Employte contrbutions. ..o e ice e ceramrerace e 23,951 22.886
T L T e T B e e - 36

Total Operalimg eVentEs. i ierinetrisriinies 9z.812 84128

EXPENSES:
1 C N T B2.084 75,726

Total Operating CHpeTSEs. o.hiiiasriasbiasnsisnsrestFinssiassisas 82,684 75,726

Chamges I Tet as8etS .ttt medin s i 10,128 8,602

TE B s et e TR e e e e 16,532 7,930

PEE aRRa e e R e i e S e ot e 266060 8 16,532

o1
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Ci_t'_i.r of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit E-3

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands)

20s g

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received fTom stafe 81t oo seeeeererrssssnrrrrmes B 924953 % B4, 270
Oher Cash TECEIVEM, 1 ..eoeeresssmesiissmsssrssssnmsnrassnssassnsarinssansns - 36
Cash paid to vendors. ..o e (E2, 100 (78,743)

Met cash provided by operating activities............ 10,853 5,569
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year........coe. 19,702 14,133
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year.......cccceciiiieee. 3 MMESES F 19,702

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
LBy qohh | al P e et e et L 10,128 -5 B602
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
el cash provided by operating activilies:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

LT D2a] P e e e e e S e 141 (16)
Cther assets.....oociii. i A Py B o Je e 107 (1,740}
Daie (bo]) Fromoother Bmds ..o v 104 620
Duie (to) from coOmponent WIS, ... cuueici i iaasscass ians - (BRG]
Accounts pavable and acerved habilities......vveeeens 373 (1,211)

Mct cash provided by operating activities........... 5 10,853 § 5,560

o2



City of Boston, Masg_.:]g husetts

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Srate-Bosten Retirement System is a defined benefit contributory retirement plan covering employees
of the City of Boston and Suffolk County, Boston Public Health Commission, Boston Housing
Authority, Boston Redevelopment Authority and the Boston Water and Sewer Commission, The system
15 subject to benefit provisions and financing requirements set forth primarily in Chapter 32 of the
Massachusetts General Laws.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Private purpose trust funds are used to report any trust arrangement not otherwise classified as pension
trusts, or an investment trust fund. “under which principal and income benefit individuals, private
orgamzations, or other governments.™

Paol#l is used for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries and the
erection and maintenance of statues and monuments for the use and enjoyment of City residents.

Paool#2 is used for scholarship awards, the purchase of educational equipment and the aid of needy
students.

Poolid 15 formed by the will of George E. White dated May 21, 1920. The will requires that the Fund's
income be used for the ereation of public utility and beauty for the use and enjoyment of the inhabitants
of the City.

Poolt7 15 a co-mingled investment fund of various non-testamentary trust funds of the City of Boston.
The non-expendable portion of the fund 15 composed of donations/contnbutions from ecither individuals
or organizations. Donations/contributions are to be expended in conformity with their respective trust
mstruments.

AGENCY FUND

Law Enforcement Trust Fund accounts for procceds from property scized from illegal drug related
activities. Funds can be used to defray the cosis of protracted investigations, to provide technical
equipment or expertise and provide matching funds for federal grants.
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City of Boston, Massachusetis

Exhilsit F-1

STATE-BOSTON RETIREMENT SYS5TEM
Comparative Statensent of Met Assers
Jmne S0 2
{with enmparative totals for 2004}

{in thowsands)

Tatal
Sate-IEnsion Retirement Sysiem
{1[1= e ([1F1
ASRETS
Cash 3 BV EEDNEIE o svvuemssiriems sttt s s ansas T = REQ5 00 5 1425303
Recsivahles:
Incerest ame] dividends...o. e e T.0KEX BAe0
o g e s e e : 545,841 1,621
(1, ) e ey i L S . 91,254 5,500
ITaBAl oAb i b s b s i 155,180 111,500
k] it e e SR L A0E0282 5 L5I7.11%
LIABILITIES
Areointy pamble. . e Jk 13304 X 11,753
Segurities parchased...... .o £ 270021 EX 055
Cillatial hihl om socarities londmg. 219,129 205 450
Tl T bl i e e i 02444 300,257
MET ASSETS
Hedd in trust for pension henefis and
L R e e e e g L5547 840 3 L216,814
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City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F<3

AGENCY FUND

Comparative Statement of Met Assels

ASEETS

sl A AN S RIS, o oo R s e

LIARILITIES

Refunds payable and ofher. .o
Total ligbilites. ...

June 30, 2003

(with comparative totals for 2004)

{in thouzands)

Law
Enforcement
Trust Fund
205 2004

5 1,278 % 20100
5 1,278 % 20100
5 1,278 % 2,010
5 1,278 % 2,010




City of Boston, Massachusetts

Exhibit F-4

STATE-BOSTON RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Comparative Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

{with comparative totals for 2004)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Lo T o e e R L

Year Ended June 30, 2005

(i thousands)

2T, - R S e s e R R

Met appreciation I,'lle]:l:lﬁl,:la[u‘.-n] n fair v
Interest and dividends............c

alue of InvestimentS.. ...

Management and related Tees.. ... s

Securitics lending income.....coiiini.

Bomower rebates and fees.. .
Intergovermmental. i,

kel ad difions: . il nas e

DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits...
I{e:mhumunenm o mher SVSlEmS.........

Fefunds of comtriBuiliomme. ..o eererseseceserere s snrsessnesesssssesans
a0 LU E L) | PO

Total deductions.....ceeeeie.

Changes in net 85521S.....uvneniiseess

MNet assets, bemnning of YEar.........ccercemmsmmmsssss s e
Metassets; end of Year. ..ot e rrerrenrenaes

3

2005 2004
1 70,043 158,194
106,577 103,287
292 33] 536.166

85,043 68,278
(9,740) (8,740)
3,070 2,335
(2,748) (2,150)
14,670 258,993
655,246 286,863
321,603 209 042
9,449 9,726
14,042 11,681
3,128 2,475
248,222 322,924
111,024 563,939
3,236,816 2,672,877
3,547,840 3,236,816

a7



City of Boston, Massachusetts
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